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[bookmark: _Toc365984754]Letter of compliance
6 September 2013
The Honourable John-Paul Langbroek MP
Minister for Education, Training and Employment
PO Box 15033
CITY EAST QLD 4002
Dear Minister
I am pleased to present the 2012–13 Annual Report and financial statements for the Queensland Studies Authority.
I certify that this Annual Report complies with:
the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, and
the detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies.
A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be accessed at www.qsa.qld.edu.au/624.html.
Yours sincerely
[image: ]
Leesa Jeffcoat
Acting Chair
Queensland Studies Authority

[bookmark: _Ref363135631][bookmark: _Toc365984755]Communication objectives
The Queensland Studies Authority (QSA) was established in 2002 and is responsible for a range of functions including developing and accrediting Kindergarten to Year 12 syllabuses and guidelines, testing, assessment, moderation, certification, vocational education and training, and tertiary entrance.
This annual report shows the ways in which the QSA is fulfilling its role as prescribed by the Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Act 2002. The report is aimed, in particular, at:
school staff
parents
tertiary institutions
unions
employers
the Queensland Government.
Report access
Access to this report is provided through the QSA’s website: www.qsa.qld.edu.au/624.html, or by contacting the QSA.
Interpreter Service Statement
	[image: Description: Description: X:\D_Corporate_and_Information_Services\B_Curriculum_Support_Services\U_Publishing\B_Policy\Annual Report\2010-11\Images and diagrams\interpreter_symbol_text.jpg]
	The Queensland Government is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders from all culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. If you have difficulty in understanding the annual report, you can contact the QSA on (07) 3864 0299 and we will arrange an interpreter to effectively communicate the report to you.
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	Senior Education Profiles 
issued to 48 205
Year 12 students
	Exploring what’s new in K–2 conferences
	Tailored professional development for schools implementing the
Australian Curriculum 

	Queensland Certificates of Education awarded to 
41 330 students
	Administration of 
2013 NAPLAN
	Moderation of 110 000 senior student assessment folios 

	Public release of 2012 
NAPLAN and 
Year 12 outcomes reports
	Administration of 2012 and development of 2013 
QCS Test
	Revisions completed for eight senior syllabuses




[bookmark: _Toc365984757]Chair’s introduction
Change is a constant in education, and principals and school staff continue to do a magnificent job in making meaning of change at the school level. The QSA works to support all schools in Queensland. It must be proactive to the emerging policy changes formulated by both Federal and State Governments, and to the needs of schools.
In recent times, Queensland’s progressive transition to the Australian Curriculum, the broadening of the QSA’s remit to include the kindergarten year, and the changing profile of the Year 11 and 12 student cohort and their needs have all involved realigning QSA’s focus. 
In addition, the outcomes of important reviews may have a significant impact on QSA’s structure, function and work in the future. We await with interest the outcomes of the Queensland Parliament’s Education and Innovation Committee review of assessment approaches in senior mathematics and science subjects; the independent review of senior assessment, reporting and tertiary entrance processes; and the Department of Education, Training and Employment’s review of QSA’s legislation and functions.
Over the past year, the QSA has made a significant contribution in supporting schools to implement Australian Curriculum learning areas from Prep to Year 10 (P–10). We have developed a comprehensive range of high quality curriculum and assessment resources for schools implementing English, Mathematics, Science and History. Online materials and professional development workshops have been made available to schools preparing to introduce Geography as a stand-alone subject in P–10 from 2014. 
To assist the Australian Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting Authority in finalising the P–10 curriculum content and achievement standards, the QSA coordinated Queensland education stakeholders’ feedback on the remaining learning areas of The Arts, Civics and Citizenship, Economics and Business, Health and Physical Education, Languages and Technology. Consultation and partnerships like these with our education colleagues have remained central to the way the QSA conducts its business. 
With funding support from the Australian and Queensland Governments, we have continued to develop resources to assist kindergarten teachers implementing the Queensland kindergarten learning guideline. 
At the other end of the schooling spectrum, QSA has been working with Queensland’s universities to ensure the alignment of senior mathematics syllabuses with first-year university mathematics courses. We intend this to be an ongoing project that will branch out to include further learning areas.
Against this backdrop, the QSA has continued to deliver its core functions of providing Kindergarten to Year 12 syllabuses, guidelines, assessment, reporting, testing, accreditation and certification services for Queensland schools. 
This work is facilitated by the dedicated members of our representative committees and Governing Body who give of their expertise in the interests of all schools and all students. As I conclude my four years as Chair of the QSA, I would like to express my appreciation for their support, policy direction, guidance and advice. I believe the QSA is in a sound position to embrace any new challenges with confidence.
[image: ]
Bob McHugh
Chair
Queensland Studies Authority
[bookmark: _Toc365984758]Financial snapshot 2012–13
In 2012–13, the QSA received $38.473 million in grant revenue from the Department of Education, Training and Employment (DETE) and raised $2.067 million from the curriculum and professional development products and services it delivered to approximately 1800 state and non-state schools.
Table 1: Summary of QSA finances 2012–13
	
	2012–13
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2009–10
	2008–09

	
	$(000)
	$(000)
	$(000)
	$(000)
	$(000)

	Revenue

	Grant revenue
	38 527
	41 223
	41 423
	38 276
	37 425

	Other revenue
	2 760
	3 259
	3 963
	3 653
	3 707

	Expenses

	Employee expenses
	26 906
	29 033
	28 804
	26 636
	24 786

	Other expenses
	14 108
	14 924
	16 579
	16 182
	15 003

	Operating surplus/(deficit)
	273
	525
	3
	(889)
	1 343

	Capital outlays

	Plant and equipment
	65
	107
	297
	211
	445

	Software
	89
	182
	0
	839
	2 227

	Total assets
	18 125
	17 919
	17 068
	17 823
	18 215

	Total liabilities
	5 788
	5 855
	5 529
	6 287
	5 790

	Net assets/(liabilities)
	12 337
	12 064
	11 539
	11 536
	12 425


Table 2: QSA employees 2012–13
	
	2012–13
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2009–10
	2008–09

	Number of employees 
at 30 June 2013
(full-time equivalent)
	217
	247.2
	248.5
	239.8
	235.5


A comprehensive set of financial statements covering all aspects of the QSA’s activities starts at page 23 of this report.
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The QSA is a statutory body established under the provisions of the Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Act 2002.
The main functions of the QSA are to:
develop and implement syllabuses and guidelines from Kindergarten to Year 12, and accredit syllabuses and guidelines prepared outside of the QSA
undertake assessment and testing programs that help students demonstrate and improve their learning achievements and plan for their future, and that benchmark Queensland students against national standards and support school improvement processes
determine procedures for and quality assure Queensland's system of continuous school-based assessment in the senior phase of learning 
manage certification and reporting processes that reflect student learning across the range of their school experiences, capture student achievement in their various endeavours, and provide personalised, up-to-date information to students and parents
register schools as registered training organisations (RTOs), and accredit and recognise vocational education and training courses
develop tertiary entrance procedures, issue tertiary entrance statements and provide information to the public about tertiary entrance procedures and requirements
undertake research in relation to the aforementioned functions.
In performing its functions, the QSA also provides the three schooling sectors with a range of professional development activities to support:
implementation of syllabuses, associated materials and processes
QSA business processes of assessment, moderation, certification and accreditation.

[bookmark: _Toc365984760]Corporate profile
[bookmark: _Toc274045241][bookmark: _Toc300136468]
[bookmark: _Toc365984761]Authority members
The constitution of the Authority is specified in Section 25 of the Act. It comprises representatives of primary and secondary schools, special and tertiary education sectors (including practising teachers), the vocational education sector, parent groups, unions and industry.
The Authority held eight meetings during the 2012–13 financial year. Its membership over the period is outlined below:
one nominee of the Minister for Education, Training and Employment (chair)
Bob McHugh (appointed until June 2013)
the chief executive (Director-General) of the education department, whose nominee is
Dr Suzanne Innes (appointed until October 2012)
Lyn McKenzie (appointed until 7 June 2013)
Patrea Walton (appointed until 30 June 2013)
the chief executive (Director-General) of the vocational education and training department, whose nominee is
Trevor Schwenke (appointed until June 2013)
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland (ISQ)
David Robertson (appointed until June 2013)
1. one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission (QCEC)
Leesa Jeffcoat (appointed until June 2013)
two nominees of the Higher Education Forum 
(at least one of whom must have expertise relating to tertiary entrance)
Professor Bob Lingard (appointed until June 2013)
Alan Finch (appointed until June 2013)

two persons who, at the time of appointment, are parents or guardians of students enrolled at a school, of whom
one is to be nominated jointly by the Federation of Parents and Friends Associations of Catholic Schools, Qld, and the Queensland Independent Schools Parents Council
one is to be nominated by the Queensland Council of Parents’ and Citizens’ Associations Incorporated
Machus de Ponte (appointed until June 2013)
Margaret Leary (appointed until June 2013) 
one primary school principal and one secondary school principal, of whom
one is to be nominated by the chief executive
one is to be nominated jointly by ISQ and QCEC
Patricia Neate (appointed until June 2013)
Daryl Hanly (appointed until June 2013)
one teacher of primary education and one teacher of secondary education, neither of whom is a school principal, of whom
one is to be nominated by the chief executive
one is to be nominated jointly by ISQ and QCEC
Gail Young (appointed until June 2013)
Tsae Wong (appointed until June 2013)
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
Samantha Pidgeon (appointed until June 2013)
one nominee of the Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch (IEUA–QNT)
Dr Paul Giles (appointed until June 2013)
one nominee of the Minister administering the vocational education and training department
Deidre Stein (appointed until June 2013)
three nominees of the Minister for Education, Training and Employment, of whom
one is to have expertise in the provision of special education
one is to have expertise in the education of Aboriginal peoples or Torres Strait Islander peoples
one is to be representative of industry
David Rogers (appointed until June 2013)
Elizabeth King (appointed until June 2013)
Alan Waldron (appointed until June 2013)
one other person who may be nominated by the Minister for Education, Training and Employment
Professor Claire Wyatt-Smith 
(appointed until June 2013). 
[bookmark: _Toc362947451][bookmark: _Toc365984762]
Executive committee
In accordance with Section 45 of the Act, an executive committee meets before each Authority meeting to set the agenda. The executive committee comprises:
chair of the Authority
one nominee of the chief executive (Director-General) of education
one nominee of the chief executive (Director-General) of vocational education and training
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland.
The Director of the QSA also participates in executive committee meetings as outlined in Section 46 of the Act, but has no voting rights.
The executive committee also performs any other functions conferred on it by the Authority and reports to the Authority as required.
[bookmark: _Toc274045242][bookmark: _Toc300136469][bookmark: _Toc362947452][bookmark: _Toc365984763]Authority committee functions
A number of committees of the Authority have been established, as set out in Section 47 of the Act, to:
develop policy proposals (for referral to the Authority)
identify issues that require policy development by the committee
provide advice to the Authority on matters referred to the committee by the Authority
provide advice to the Authority on matters identified by the committee as warranting such advice
keep the Authority informed about current and expected issues requiring its attention
consider and approve plans and procedures that provide mechanisms for the implementation and endorsement of Authority policy
establish (or recommend establishment of) subcommittees and task groups to provide specialist advice and develop policy proposals
consider specialist advice and policy proposals from subcommittees and task groups
advise and assist the Office of the Authority in policy implementation
consider advice from the Office of the Authority on relevant issues
maintain and strengthen communication links between the Authority and its stakeholders.
Details of the functions and membership of each committee are given in Appendix 1.
[bookmark: _Toc365984764]Authority committees
[image: ]

[bookmark: _Toc365984765]Organisational structure
The organisational structure of the QSA, as at June 2013, is shown below. Members of the key corporate governance committee of the QSA are listed in Appendix 4.
QSA’s central office is located at 154 Melbourne Street, South Brisbane. The QSA had 217 full-time equivalent staff as at June 2013, based mostly at the central office. The remainder work in 13 district offices across Queensland (district office contact details are listed in Appendix 5). Positions are filled through a mix of permanent and temporary appointments, and secondments. Staff are employed directly by the Authority as part of the Education, Training and Employment portfolio. 
[image: ]

[bookmark: _Toc365984766]Strategic Plan 2012–16
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[bookmark: _Toc365984767]Planning and objectives
[bookmark: _Toc274045247][bookmark: _Toc300136474]The Strategic Plan 2012–16 refined the objectives and strategies of the Strategic Plan 2011–15, taking into account the strategic direction and policy focus of the government and progress achieved against current strategies. The plan will guide the work of the QSA and provide the framework for its operational planning in a context of significant state and national developments in education.
QSA’s work supports the Queensland Government’s objective to revitalise front-line services for families by assisting teachers to develop high quality curriculum for the classroom. To support this, our strategic objectives focus on providing:
innovative syllabuses and supporting products that assist schools to prepare young people for life and work in the 21st century
assessments and other resources that enable students to demonstrate achievement and provide useful information for teachers, parents and other stakeholders
efficient and effective delivery of our products and services.
[bookmark: _Toc362947457][bookmark: _Toc365984768]Performance against objectives
A summary of achievements is presented on page 3. Performance against the following indicators identified in the plan is detailed throughout the report:
Queensland schools provided with adequate products and services to enable successful integration of the new Australian Curriculum with the Queensland curriculum
percentage of stakeholders surveyed who consider the syllabuses and support materials developed by the QSA to be satisfactory
average cost per syllabus revision
external audit of QSA VET management processes demonstrates compliance with Australian Quality Training Framework standards
distribution of test materials and reports for NAPLAN within designated time frames
average cost per student of developing and issuing the NAPLAN student report
distribution of QCS Test and senior education profile reports within designated time frames
proportion of students who become QCE eligible
the percentage of all learners whose QCE eligibility status changed following a request for verification or review of information
the percentage of all OP-eligible Year 12 students whose OP changed following a request for verification or review of information
VET data supplied in agreed time frames
Governing Body’s satisfaction with support and advice
satisfaction with QSA professional development activities
increase in subscribers to QSA newsletters
QSA projects delivered effectively, on time and within budget.
outcomes of the external audit of QSA financial statements
number of requests from external parties for our data and/or expertise
staff satisfaction and retention data.
[bookmark: _Toc274045248][bookmark: _Toc300136477][bookmark: _Toc362947458][bookmark: _Toc365984769]Challenges and future priorities
A major challenge for the QSA will be to respond effectively to the outcomes of the current reviews related to its legislation, operations and functions. The QSA will take this opportunity to enhance its products and services and realign them to the needs of education stakeholders and the community.
Other priorities include:
delivering our core business to a high standard while reducing red tape
providing schools with resources and support to implement the Australian Curriculum in collaboration with our education partners
providing resources and support to assist implementation of the Queensland kindergarten learning guideline in childcare centres
supporting schools to improve student performance in the National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy (NAPLAN)
assisting more students to become eligible for a Queensland Certificate of Education
incorporating new technologies in the delivery and development of our products and services.


[bookmark: _Toc365984770]Program review

[bookmark: _Toc365984771]Syllabus development and implementation
During 2012–13, the QSA continued to develop its vision of an innovative and future focused Kindergarten–Year 12 (K–12) education framework based on:
syllabus design principles and elements that create the conditions for teachers to shape a curriculum that meets the needs of their students
phases of learning with a specific developmental focus
syllabus and guideline content that focuses on the expected learning and sets the parameters for the intended curriculum
assessment, standards and consistency that show how standards based, school-based assessment is integral to the teaching and learning process.
A survey of education stakeholders showed that 90% were satisfied with the syllabuses and support materials that the QSA developed in 2012–13. This is 3% less than in 2011–12 but a 4% increase on 2010–11.
Transition to the Australian Curriculum
The QSA is working with its education partners to ensure a smooth transition to the Australian Curriculum and promote the best interests of Queensland schools.
QSA’s partnership with the school sectors is coordinated through the Transition to Australian Curriculum Steering Committee, which provides a structure for ensuring Queensland schools receive consistent and timely information about the new curriculum. As an activity of the committee, the QSA developed an agreed implementation plan and 
Prep–Year 12 (P–12) work plan that addresses:
guidelines and advice
resource development
professional development
communication
ICT infrastructure.

Curriculum development
QSA’s key curriculum development activities have included:
providing advice about P–12 curriculum content, achievement standards, assessment and implementation strategies to inform Queensland’s position at national and state meetings
developing coordinated Queensland responses to
draft initial and final shape papers for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Languages Framework, Civics and Citizenship, Languages, National Trade Cadetships, Technologies and Work Studies
draft P–10 curriculum materials for the revised general capabilities, students with disability and eight subjects: The Arts, Civics and Citizenship, Economics and Business, Geography, Health and Physical Education, Languages (Chinese and Italian), Technologies
draft curriculum materials for the 15 senior secondary subjects: Ancient History, Biology, Chemistry, Earth and Environmental Science, English, English as an Additional Language or Dialect, Essential English, Essential Mathematics, General Mathematics, Geography, Literature, Mathematical Methods, Modern History, Physics, Specialist Mathematics
coordinating participation of Queensland teachers and curriculum specialists in national forums, national panels and Australian Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting Authority (ACARA) advisory committees
coordinating Queensland participation in ACARA projects including
the national work samples project
the intensive engagement with senior secondary Australian Curriculum
trial school engagement with P–10 curriculum for seven subjects: The Arts, Economics and Business, Geography, Health and Physical Education, Languages (Chinese and Italian), Technologies and Work Studies
curriculum materials for students with disability.

Guidelines and advice
Guidelines and advice have been developed to give an agreed Queensland position on Australian Curriculum implementation including validation of the draft learning area standards descriptors (LASDs) to support assessment and reporting in English, Mathematics, Science and History. The LASDs were revised as draft Standards Elaborations for further validation. 
Resource development
Resources previously developed with the school sectors and classroom teachers for the Australian Curriculum English, History, Mathematics and Science have been redeveloped as a comprehensive, fully searchable online resource organised as:
curriculum that directly links to the Australian Curriculum
assessment and reporting advice
resources including
year level and unit overview planning templates 
exemplars to demonstrate the application of the templates
exemplars for multiple year level planning for P–7 
sample assessments
detailed mapping of the Australian and Queensland curriculums 
P–10 Literacy and Numeracy indicators aligned to the revised Australian Curriculum general capabilities
Year 1 Checkpoints assessments and associated resources
example literacy and numeracy short assessments for Years 2–7
Agricultural Education Course Advice
Elaborations for Year 7–10 Science
information statements and templates to support student diversity.
Professional development
Professional development activities included:
delivering 106 workshops for more than 2500 teachers
providing sessions by invitation from professional associations, school clusters, school sectors and administrator’s groups
delivering eight statewide training sessions for Education Queensland regional office staff
developing online modules
facilitating Queensland forums and workshops with stakeholders to support ACARA consultation.

Communication
Communication activities included participating in stakeholder forums and contributing regular articles in the QSA’s e-newsletter.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Transition to the Australian Curriculum
The QSA will:
continue to provide strategic advice to inform Queensland’s position on the development and finalisation of the P–12 Australian Curriculum content and achievement standards
develop and revise guidelines and advice to reflect Australian Curriculum materials and learning areas as they are approved including
assessment advice and guidelines in P–10
The Arts
Civics and Citizenship
cross-curriculum priorities
Economics and Business
Geography
Health and Physical Education
Languages
P–2 planning for teaching and learning, assessment and reporting for 2014
reporting student achievement and progress 
in P–10
Work Studies
integrated programs
develop resources including
exemplars for other Australian Curriculum learning areas as they are approved
multiple year level exemplars for learning areas as they are approved
integrated programs exemplars
mapping Australian Curriculum to Queensland curriculum in learning areas as they are approved
revising assessment resources that support the application of the Australian Curriculum achievement standards in classroom practice following the validation process
provide professional development including
workshops for teachers focusing on disciplinary learning and assessment
online modules
provide timely, consistent and accurate information to stakeholders.


Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander perspectives
The QSA is working to increase awareness of Indigenous perspectives and improve outcomes for Indigenous students in Queensland schools and kindergarten services. Embedding Indigenous perspectives into our organisational environment, products and services is the key to achieving these aims.
The QSA has published:
a range of resources for kindergarten teachers to support the learning of Aboriginal children and Torres Strait Islander children 
a suite of resources to support the implementation of the P–10 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Languages Syllabus — resources that support teachers and community members in the maintenance, revival and development of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander languages and build respect for local histories and culture
resources to support the cross-curriculum priority of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories and cultures in Australian Curriculum learning areas.
The QSA has sought expressions of interest from schools wishing to trial the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Languages Senior Syllabus from 2013. However, to date, there have been insufficient applications for a trial to proceed. The syllabus would enable students to study the languages associated with their own communities and locations.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander perspectives
The QSA will:
embed Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander perspectives in QSA products and services
continue to support school communities wishing to implement the P–10 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Languages syllabus
work with stakeholders to support them to embed Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander perspectives in their work with schools and kindergarten services.



Kindergarten — Year 10 resources
Queensland kindergarten learning guideline (QKLG)
The QSA has continued to develop online professional development resources and delivered 30 workshops to support implementation of the QKLG in kindergartens and long day care services. Successful conferences on the theme Exploring what’s new in K–2 were attended by approximately 350 early years’ educators in Cairns, the Sunshine Coast and Townsville.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Kindergarten — Year 10 resources
The QSA will:
continue to develop resources to assist schools implementing the Australian Curriculum
continue to develop online professional development resources and deliver workshops supporting implementation of the QKLG.



Senior curriculum resources
Senior syllabuses
The QSA has revised its quality plans for the development of new senior syllabuses and the revision of existing syllabuses. These processes provide schools with quality senior syllabuses and support resources, and improve consistency across syllabuses. 
Completed syllabus revisions
Queensland’s senior syllabuses are revised on a six‑year cycle to ensure currency and relevance.
Eight syllabuses for Authority subjects were revised during the past year:
Agricultural Science
Business Organisation and Management
Drama
Graphics
Legal Studies
Marine Studies
Music
Technology Studies.
Two syllabuses were renamed to better reflect their content and focus:
Business Organisation and Management was renamed Business Management
Marine Studies was renamed Marine Science.
These syllabuses were published online together with a suite of support resources including sample units of work. Professional development workshops were also provided to support implementation.
The average cost of each syllabus revision in 2012–13 was $113 833.
Redevelopment of Study Area Specifications
The QSA consulted with a range of stakeholders to inform the revision of Study Area Specifications.
The revisions concern:
updating the subject matter
removing references to embedded vocational education and training (VET)
providing clearer and more specific advice about teaching, learning and assessment.
Senior External Examination syllabuses
A Punjabi syllabus was developed for use with students taking the Senior External Examination in this subject.


Trial syllabuses
The English for ESL Learners Senior Syllabus continues in extended trial, as a similar course is being developed as part of the Australian Curriculum.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Senior curriculum resources
The QSA will:
plan the redevelopment of the suite of Study Area Specifications
commence the revisions of Study Area Specifications.


[bookmark: _Toc300136491][bookmark: _Toc365984772]
Testing and assessment
The QSA works in partnership with school communities to support assessment practices across Prep to Year 12. 
QSA also works with students, principals, teachers and parents to build greater understanding of test results and their use in improving student performance.
Prep–Year 10
[bookmark: _Toc300136493]Literacy and Numeracy Indicators
Literacy and Numeracy Indicators describe expected learning in literacy and numeracy for students from Prep to Year 10. They support planning for teaching, learning, assessment and monitoring across all key learning areas.
The indicators have been aligned to the Australian Curriculum and a range of short literacy and numeracy assessment resources for Prep to Year 10 have been developed.
The short assessments focus on specific literacy and numeracy skills within Australian Curriculum learning areas and Queensland curriculum, and provide practical examples of ways to embed the monitoring and assessment of literacy and numeracy skills across the curriculum.
[bookmark: _Toc300136494]National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy (NAPLAN)
The NAPLAN tests are designed to assess the skills of Australian students in literacy and numeracy by:
collecting data from the population of Years 3, 5, 7 and 9 students for reporting to parents/carers and schools and for systemic reporting
assessing students against national minimum standards.
The 2013 NAPLAN tests were held in May for all students in Australia in Years 3, 5, 7 and 9.
The QSA successfully coordinated the administration, marking and reporting of NAPLAN for approximately 236 550 students in Queensland within the agreed time frames. 
This is 18 550 more students than last year, as the initial half-cohort Prep Year students from 2007 were in Year 5 in 2012.
In a survey of school principals, 88% rated QSA’s test preparation and communication material for NAPLAN as ‘good’ or ‘very good’.
The average cost of developing and issuing the NAPLAN report was $35 per student.


Queensland Comparable Assessment Tasks (QCATs)
The QCATs were developed by the QSA to provide evidence of what students know, understand and can do in relation to a selection of Australian Curriculum content and achievement standards for English, Mathematics and Science in Years 4, 6 and 9. They were available for implementation by schools for the final time in Term 3, 2012.
QCATs were administered by the QSA under a Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of Education, Training and Employment, which ceased on 30 June 2012. 
[bookmark: _Toc300136496]Assessment Bank
The Assessment Bank operated from 2008 as an online collection of assessments and resources linked to the current curriculum. It was developed under the Queensland Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting Framework project. By 2013 the Assessment Bank contained over 1200 items and had approximately 39 000 registered users. 
These assessments and resources have now been incorporated into the QSA website with the relevant Years 1–9 Essential Learnings and Standards and Australian Curriculum learning areas. This means:
a login is no longer required — teachers have easier access to assessments as they can search using search engines such as Google
QSA’s curriculum and assessment resources are now available in the same location.
The Assessment Bank was decommissioned on 21 June 2013.

Years 11–12
Queensland Core Skills (QCS) Test
The QCS Test assesses candidates in the common curriculum elements of Authority subjects and contributes scaling data for the calculation of Overall Positions (OPs) and Field Positions (FPs) for tertiary entrance.
Table 3 shows a breakdown of candidates who sat the 2012 QCS Test. Table 4 shows the distribution of grades awarded, both by gender and overall.
Table 3: 2012 QCS Test candidates
	Total
	29 210*

	OP-eligible
	25 759

	OP-ineligible
	2 606

	Equivalent eligible
	784

	Equivalent ineligible
	35

	Sat but not certificated
(i.e. left before completing Year 12)
	26


Table 4: 2012 QCS Test grades
	Grade
	Overall
	Female
	Male

	Total #
	29 189*
	16 281
	12 908

	A
	15.54%
	12.97%
	18.78%

	B
	27.74%
	27.03%
	28.63%

	C
	34.66%
	36.83%
	31.93%

	D
	20.80%
	22.10%
	19.16%

	E
	1.26%
	1.07%
	1.50%

	Total %
	100.00%
	55.78%
	44.22%


*21 students who sat the test did not receive a grade
Senior External Examination
The QSA conducts a series of senior subject examinations at locations across Queensland in October and November each year. These examinations are for people who are not senior students in Queensland secondary schools or for Year 12 students unable to access particular subjects at their school.
Twenty-one subjects were offered at the 2012 Senior External Examination, with seven language subject examinations borrowed from interstate curriculum authorities under the Collaborative Curriculum and Assessment Framework for Languages (CCAFL) arrangements. There were 1205 subject registrations by 845 candidates. Ultimately, 793 candidates sat 1030 subject examinations.
[bookmark: _Toc300136500]

Externally moderated school-based assessment
The QSA works in partnership with schools to implement Queensland’s system of externally moderated school-based assessment, quality assure the accuracy of data collected, and report student results. 
The continued engagement of classroom teachers and commitment of district and state review moderation panellists enables the system to work effectively.
State and district review panels
To support the senior assessment system, QSA developed and delivered:
the Senior moderation hub — a link to advice documents, resources, professional development materials and administration forms 
over 200 training sessions across districts
the annual moderation conference for approximately 750 review panel chairs, state panellists and Queensland Certificate of Individual Achievement (QCIA) district advisers
training to review panel chairs through half-day training sessions.
School implementation of courses and assessment
QSA’s actions in supporting schools to implement syllabuses and assess students included:
providing over 240 assessment instruments and approximately 150 samples of student responses 
providing advice documents and resources for schools 
developing work program requirements, checklists and samples for eight new syllabuses 
conducting assessment workshops statewide in twelve subjects 
meeting with school administrators across districts 
advising schools on assessment for over 110 000 student folios 
externally reviewing the implementation of Authority-registered subjects and short courses at 150 schools 
providing advice to schools about the QCIA, including reviewing over 600 curriculum plans and peer-reviewing certificate statements and evidence from 190 schools 
gathering data through comparability and random sampling to evaluate year-to-year processes and to determine priorities for assessment support and panel training 
providing advice to schools, students, employers and community groups about learning projects
reviewing student learning projects and evidence of achievement. 
Innovation
The QSA has responded to international demand for quality education by delivering the Queensland senior assessment system to:
two schools in Suzhou and Hangzhou in China 
the Australian International School (AIS) in Sharjah, United Arab Emirates 
Nauru Secondary School in the Republic of Nauru.
We have also enhanced service delivery through: 
the electronic transfer of Forms R12 after moderation meetings for Authority-registered subjects
submissions for AIS Sharjah using an e-Form R6.
	


OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Testing and assessment
The QSA will:
work with DETE to provide feedback to the national testing authority about potential test items, test protocols and test administration issues relating to NAPLAN tests
administer NAPLAN tests to all Queensland students in Years 3, 5, 7 and 9
provide an in-depth analysis of NAPLAN test items to assist teachers to interpret data from NAPLAN results
develop and administer the QCS Test for Year 12 students
continue to implement recommendations of the Review of the QCS Test conducted in 2011–12
develop and administer senior external examinations for non-school candidates and school students who are unable to access those subjects in their school
continue to develop assessment items aligned with the content descriptors and achievement standards in the Australian Curriculum
continue to provide a facility for data analysis of NAPLAN, the QCS Test, OPs and FPs and Year 12 outcomes
evaluate and refine all processes involved in NAPLAN tests and the QCS Test 
check Subject Achievement Indicators allocated by schools for Authority subjects in Year 12
develop and deliver training packages and information for moderation panels
develop professional development and resources to support the implementation of externally moderated school-based assessment
ensure the validity and reliability of assessment and achievement decisions of schools for senior students
deliver the system of externally moderated school‑based assessment to international schools
enhance delivery of senior assessment services to schools through the exploration of digital and electronic technology.


[bookmark: _Toc365984773]
Certification and tertiary entrance
Senior Education Profile
In 2012, the QSA issued Senior Education Profiles and Senior Statements to 48 205 students who completed Year 12. Queensland Certificates of Education (QCEs) were awarded to 41 330 students —1748 more than in 2011. Of these students, 27 023 received a Tertiary Entrance Statement. Certification was achieved within the agreed government time frames, as has been the case each year since the QSA assumed responsibility for certification in Queensland in 2002.
The quality of the QSA’s certification processes is evident from these statistics:
the QCE-eligibility status of only 0.42% of all learners changed following requests for verification or review of results
only three OPs (or 0.01%) were required to be changed following official appeals by students — the same number as in 2011.
The average cost of developing and issuing Senior Education Profiles was $269 per student.
The average cost of providing tertiary entrance and pathways information programs (which included the Queensland Core Skills Test, calculation of Subject Achievement Indicators and career advice) was $9 per student.
Queensland Certificate of Education (QCE)
The QCE is Queensland’s senior schooling certificate. It is awarded to eligible students when they complete the senior phase of learning, usually at the end of Year 12.
The QCE provides pathways to work, further education and training by recognising a broad range of learning options and offering flexibility in what is learnt, as well as where and when that learning occurs. Learning options can include senior school subjects, vocational education and training, workplace and community learning, and university subjects undertaken while at school.
[bookmark: _Toc300136504]Learning accounts
The QSA continues to work with learning providers to promote the online student learning account as a useful tool for students to personally monitor their progress towards the QCE. The learning account records what, where and when a student learns, and the results achieved.
[bookmark: _Toc300136505]

Student Connect
www.studentconnect.qsa.qld.edu.au
The Student Connect website gives senior students access to their learning account and results, as well as information and links for exploring post-school education, training and career pathways. 
[bookmark: _Toc300136506]Queensland Certificate of Individual Achievement (QCIA)
The QCIA recognises and reports the individualised learning achievements of students with special needs who have completed at least 12 years of schooling. The QCIA ensures that the educational achievement of all students can be recorded.
In 2012, the QSA awarded 599 QCIAs to students from 179 schools.
[bookmark: _Toc300136507]Equivalency of non-Queensland qualifications
[bookmark: _Toc300136508]The QSA provides Education Statements for school qualifications that have been awarded by recognised interstate or overseas institutions. The statements give the Queensland secondary school level equivalent of submitted qualifications.
In 2012–13, the QSA received and processed 140 equivalency applications for qualifications from 40 countries. Equivalency assessments are provided for employment and recruitment purposes.
2012 Year 12 outcomes report
On behalf of the Queensland Government, the QSA publicly reported a range of Year 12 student outcomes data. For each school, the report includes:
information on the number of students awarded certificates and qualifications
the proportion of Queensland Tertiary Admissions Centre applicants receiving a tertiary offer
the number of students who received OPs in bands 1–5, 6–10, 11–15, 16–20 and 21–25
the number of students receiving VET certificates at various levels.
The QSA worked closely with schools to ensure the accuracy of the data, and to communicate the implications of the data to school communities.
	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Senior Education Profile
The QSA will:
continue to promote the QCE and work with stakeholders to maximise learning opportunities for students
develop resources to support schools to make optimum use of Student Connect
evaluate all processes involved in providing Tertiary Entrance Statements
provide ongoing support for the implementation of the QCIA by training QCIA advisors in policies and protocols
continue to provide a facility for data analysis of Year 12 outcomes.


Vocational education and training (VET)
The QSA registers schools as registered training organisations (RTOs) to Australian Qualifications Framework Certificate IV level (except declared Apprenticeship Certificates III). This registration function is performed under a delegation from the Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA).
An external audit of QSA’s VET management processes demonstrated QSA’s compliance with the Australian Quality Training Framework standards and national benchmarks.
The QSA also provides advice to schools on becoming an RTO and implementing selected qualifications from National Training Packages. This advice is provided through a range of modes, including workshops, memos, newsletters and telephone calls.
Strong VET participation by schools is contributing to the achievement of the Queensland Government’s 2012 target to reduce unemployment in Queensland to 4% over the next six years.
[bookmark: _Toc300136511]School audits
As part of the registration process, schools are audited by the QSA for compliance with the National VET Quality Framework. 
In the past year, the QSA has conducted 81 site audits and 29 desk audits.
The average cost per school of external audit as an RTO was $13 200.
[bookmark: _Toc300136512]Registration activity
In the past year, the QSA processed 998 registration activities for the 366 schools registered as RTOs. There were 712 registration applications and 286 registration removals.
[bookmark: _Toc300136513]
VET and the QCE
The QSA continued to work with the State Training Agency Clearinghouse to ensure accurate banking of VET achievements from non-school RTOs. The QSA also banked student VET achievements gained at schools in other states.
VET data quality
The QSA implemented new reports for school RTOs to assist them in improving their reporting of student VET achievement. 
[bookmark: _Toc300136515]National collaboration
The QSA and fellow members of the Australasian Curriculum, Assessment and Certification Authorities (ACACA) continued working together on a range of common issues relating to VET in schools.
National VET regulator
In April 2011, the National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 established the Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA). 
ASQA assumed certain state and territory VET registration and accreditation functions from those states and territories that refer their powers to the Commonwealth.
Legislation was passed by the Queensland Government on 29 June 2012 referring its VET registration powers to ASQA from 1 July 2012. 
ASQA granted the QSA a delegation on 3 August 2012 for the period until 30 June 2013. ASQA has since extended all delegations until 31 December 2013.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2012–13: VET
The QSA will:
continue to guide schools that are RTOs or seeking to become RTOs in complying with the VET Quality Framework
work according to the VET Quality Framework to
register schools as RTOs, including those seeking to add to their scope of registration
renew registration of schools that are RTOs 
work with DETE staff to improve the quality of VET data reported by RTOs
work with school RTOs to improve the quality of their VET data
work with other states and territories through ACACA on issues of common interest
work with school sectors on the implementation of National Trade Cadetships.


[bookmark: _Toc365984774]Corporate support and communication
Corporate support functions have a key role in developing the governance framework of the QSA and leading the development and implementation of effective resource management and capability development strategies.
Effective communication and partnerships with schools, industry, academia and the wider community ensure that the QSA’s products and services meet the needs of stakeholders.
The QSA continues to develop its consultative structures and uses a range of approaches to build partnerships and share information with these groups.
Consultation mechanisms
Ten committees provide advice to the QSA Governing Body to ensure its decision making is well informed. These committees are an important part of the consultation framework that assists the QSA to develop high quality products and services for all Queensland teachers and students.
The QSA continued to consult with principals on key education issues and obtain their perspectives on QSA’s activities, products and services. 
Early in 2013, the Chief Executive Officer conducted a series of stakeholder consultation meetings to seek feedback on:
QSA’s products and services, including externally moderated school-based assessment, 
QSA’s professional development programs and communications
interactions with QSA staff. 
The QSA committed to responding to a range of issues raised during these sessions. 
The QSA is currently working with its stakeholders to improve its products and services and to help schools improve learning outcomes.
[bookmark: _Toc300136522]Professional development activities
During 2012–13, the QSA delivered more than 300 workshops to approximately 8000 educators to support the introduction and implementation of curriculum, assessment and reporting initiatives across Kindergarten–Year 12. Participants received certification appropriate for teacher registration renewal based on the Australian Professional Standards for Teachers and the Queensland College of Teachers’ Continuing Professional Development Framework.


The QSA organised 39 presentations in response to requests for professional development services from schools, higher education institutions and professional associations. Topics included the Australian Curriculum, assessment, the QCS Test, tertiary pathways, senior syllabuses and the QKLG.
More than 95% of participants expressed satisfaction with QSA’s workshop program.
Briefing for education academics
[bookmark: _Toc300136524][bookmark: _Toc300136523]The QSA hosted its annual briefing for approximately 50 academics involved in teaching pre‑service education students. The briefing encouraged professional conversations and information sharing about the implementation of the Australian Curriculum, senior assessment and the QKLG.
Careers markets
The QSA provided advice for students, parents, and prospective tertiary applicants at the Tertiary Studies Expo (TSXPO) in Brisbane.
Enquiry service
The QSA maintained its toll-free Student Connect hotline service for students, parents/carers and school staff.
During the 2012 release of the Senior Education Profile, hotline staff assisted with approximately 700 student certification-related queries.
[bookmark: _Toc300136525]Publications
Regular publications produced by the QSA for stakeholders include:
QSA Connect, a fortnightly email newsletter that updates more than 12 500 subscribers about QSA initiatives, professional development activities and events
NAPLAN, a monthly online bulletin keeping schools informed about processes and procedures for the National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy tests
Student Connect, a magazine published twice a year, providing Year 12 students with news, study tips and information about their studies and further education, training and career pathways
VET Update, a quarterly update about practical aspects of VET in schools for VET coordinators 
and principals
memos — timely online advice to schools about important QSA information.
Information and communications technology (ICT)
Efficient ICT systems are essential to ensure the delivery of the QSA’s strategic initiatives and to support the delivery of accurate and timely data to schools, teachers, students and other stakeholders, particularly for testing and senior certification programs.
Senior Learning Information Management System (SLIMS)
Ageing hardware for the SLIMS application, which registers young people working towards the QCE and records information about their enrolments and results, will be replaced during 2013.
Student Data Capture System (SDCS)
Redevelopment has commenced on the SDCS application, which is used by all secondary schools across Queensland for the purposes of capturing data on student achievements and results. Rollout of the new SDCS to schools is planned to commence in 2014 and be completed during 2015. 
ICT governance
The QSA’s ICT Strategic Plan guides development, investment and maintenance decisions relating to QSA’s ICT systems.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: ICT
The QSA will:
support and advise schools about student enrolment rules and regulations for senior certification
proceed with redevelopment of the SDCS
develop and implement enhancements to SLIMS
replace ageing computer hardware associated with the delivery of the QCE
support and maintain all QSA corporate application systems
assist QSA business units to identify, scope and implement system improvements
support the development and maintenance of the QSA website.


[bookmark: _Toc300136530]Workforce planning, attraction and retention
[bookmark: _Toc300136531]In 2012–13, the QSA was staffed by 217 full-time equivalent staff. The permanent retention rate during this period was 86.6% and the permanent separation rate was 13.4%.
[bookmark: _Toc300136532]The QSA has focused on initiatives to attract and retain high performing staff. Key activities included:
revising attendance management policies to promote work–life balance
providing targeted professional development opportunities where appropriate
continuing to promote a culture of ongoing performance monitoring and management 
providing development opportunities to strengthen the leadership and management skills of senior staff.
The QSA’s Consultative Committee underpins QSA’s industrial and employee relations framework. It consists of an equal number of management and union representatives. The committee meets as required to ensure relevant industrial and employment information is shared and provide representatives with a forum to raise relevant issues.
Governance achievements
The QSA has undertaken a range of initiatives aimed at ensuring its sustainability and compliance with legislative requirements. These include:
updating the QSA’s Corporate Governance Framework to support the effectiveness of the QSA’s corporate governance activities
engaging the Department of Education, Training and Employment (DETE) to provide internal audit services (financial compliance and performance audits)
continuing to review the strategic risk assessment and ensuring risk minimisation or mitigation actions are in place
developing the 2012–13 operating and capital budgets to support strategic priorities and accountabilities
continuing to improve internal reporting systems
continuing to promote the requirements of the State Procurement Policy and strengthen purchasing through targeted training
monitoring and reviewing the Financial Management Improvement Framework to articulate explicit links between improvement initiatives and operational activities
providing records management training to managers to support understanding of policies and procedures
continuing to review business processes to identify opportunities for improvements and innovation
monitoring QSA corporate and management performance against branch operational plans and performance accountabilities for managers and branch budgets.

Advice and compliance
[bookmark: _Toc300136535]During 2012–13, the QSA provided advice on administrative, financial, human resource, service improvement and publishing issues that influenced the performance of the organisation. This included reviewing, developing, improving and implementing policies and procedures to ensure that the QSA’s corporate service-related activities complied with whole-of-government legislation, policies and directives.
Every year the QSA is audited internally and externally. The internal audit was performed by DETE’s Internal Audit Unit, and the external audit was performed by Prosperity Advisers Pty Ltd, a contractor of the Queensland Audit Office. There were no significant issues arising from either the internal or external audits in 2012–13.
The QSA also engaged DETE’s Internal Audit Unit to undertake an independent examination of all activity associated with the calculation and reconciliation of costs involved in the QSA’s administration of the NAPLAN tests. Internal Audit found QSA’s processes to be sound.
Audit and risk management
The QSA has an Audit Committee, whose charter is consistent with the Queensland Treasury Audit Committee Guidelines. Its membership, duties and responsibilities are listed in Appendix 1.
The QSA’s internal audit plan was informed by its strategic plan, operational plan, and strategic risk assessment.
Delegations
During 2012–13, the QSA reviewed and endorsed all financial, procurement, and human resource management activities in accordance with their delegations. These were subject to the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009.
Workplace ethics
The QSA’s Code of Conduct is informed by the Public Sector Ethics Act 2004 and published on the QSA website. All QSA employees undertake education and training about the Code of Conduct — which includes the application of ethics principles and obligations of public officials — at induction and regularly throughout their employment.
Information
Information provision is undertaken by the QSA in accordance with Sections 13–15 and 17 of the Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Act 2002.


Copies of certificates
As outlined in Part 7 of the Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Regulation 2002, certified copies of certificates issued by the QSA were provided on request to those who had previously been awarded a Junior Certificate, Senior Certificate, Queensland Certificate of Individual Achievement, Queensland Certificate of Education and/or Tertiary Entrance Statement.
Right to Information
The QSA received no applications under the Information Privacy Act 2009 or the Right to Information provisions.

	OUTLOOK FOR 2013–14: 
Corporate support and communication
The QSA will:
continue to communicate and consult with key stakeholders through a range of media and mechanisms
review and improve approaches to project, risk and performance management
improve the quality management systems that support delivery of core products and services, and coordinate the development of quality plans for new products and services
implement financial resources for strategic and operational products and services
monitor the Financial Management Practice Manual to support consistent business practice and ensure compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and subordinate legislation
continue to review and implement the Financial Management Improvement Framework
build on the success of the Engaged Workplaces initiative to strengthen performance management processes
review the Professional Development Strategy to align staff development with organisational and employee performance initiatives
provide regular ethics training for staff
continue to refine recruitment and selection processes
conduct ongoing monitoring of corporate services policies to support quality corporate governance
continue to review corporate services policies to support quality corporate governance
continue to seek opportunities to streamline business processes and promote innovative approaches
continue to conduct Corporate Information Sharing Sessions to targeted staff to ensure understanding of and compliance with corporate policies and guidelines.
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	General information
This financial report covers the Queensland Studies Authority.
The Queensland Studies Authority is a statutory body established under the Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Act 2002.
The Authority is controlled by the State of Queensland, which is the ultimate parent.
The head office and principal place of business of the Authority is:
154 Melbourne Street
South Brisbane QLD 4101
A description of the nature of the Authority’s operations and its principal activities is included in the notes to the financial statements.
For information in relation to the Authority’s financial report, please call (07) 3864 0222, email finance@qsa.qld.edu.au or visit the Authority’s website: www.qsa.qld.edu.au.
Amounts shown in this financial report may not add to the correct subtotals or totals due to rounding.
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Committees of the Authority
The Authority has established 10 committees to work on specific areas. Subcommittees were established as necessary to support these committees.
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Education Committee
Functions are to:
provide advice and direction to the Authority and CEO of the QSA on
ensuring that the QSA’s products and services meet the educational needs of Aboriginal young people and Torres Strait Islander young people
syllabus development, assessment, testing and reporting issues (including new QSA initiatives) as they relate to the education of young Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people, and education about both Aboriginal peoples and Torres Strait Islander peoples
ensuring Indigenous representation on Authority committees and other QSA consultative mechanisms
policy issues, particularly equity and social justice issues, as they relate to the education of Aboriginal young people and Torres Strait Islander young people
be the primary mechanism for the QSA to consult with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities on QSA matters
provide a two-way communication forum for Indigenous perspectives on QSA activities, and as a communication between the QSA and Indigenous communities.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member with expertise in the education of Aboriginal young people and/or Torres Strait Islander young people
one parent nominee
one nominee of the Queensland Indigenous Education Consultative Committee
one senior officer from the Department of Education, Training and Employment (DETE) — education sector
one senior officer from DETE — training sector
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
one nominee of the Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch
four teachers representing each of the State, Catholic and Independent school sectors
 (preferably an early years teacher, a secondary teacher, a primary teacher and a school principal)
one nominee of the Torres Strait (Torres Strait Islander Regional Education Council)
one representative of the Cape York education community
one representative of the tertiary education sector
QSA Principal Education Officer (Indigenous Education)
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136549]Accreditation and Recognition Committee
Functions are to:
oversee the accreditation process of non-QSA syllabuses and guidelines and assess applications
oversee the recognition process of non-QSA and QSA developed courses of study, other than Authority or Authority-registered courses and assess applications
make recommendations to the QSA Governing Body about the accreditation of non-QSA syllabuses and guidelines and recognition of non-QSA and QSA courses of study contributing towards a QCE.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
one nominee of DETE — training sector
one nominee of the Office of Non-State Education, DETE
one representative of the tertiary education sector
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
one nominee of the Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136550]
Assessment, Moderation and Certification Committee
Functions are to:
determine and recommend procedures for assessment, moderation and certification within the approved policies of the Authority
provide advice and make recommendations to the Authority on assessment components of relevant documents such as QSA syllabuses and ACARA curriculum materials
provide advice and make recommendations to the Authority on assessment information provided to teachers
identify and advise the Authority on strategic issues relating to future developments in assessment, moderation and certification.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
one nominee of DETE — training sector
one parent nominee
one tertiary educator/researcher
one district review panel chair
one state review panel chair
two school administrators (state and non-state)
one primary school principal
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136551]Audit Committee
Functions are to:
provide independent assurance and assistance to the Authority and CEO of the QSA on
the risk control and compliance frameworks
the agency’s external accountability responsibilities as prescribed in Education (Queensland Studies Authority) Act 2002
oversee internal and external audit services
review strategic risk assessment
monitor improvement strategies to reduce and mitigate against risk.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
David Robertson, Executive Director, Independent Schools Queensland
external member — Authority member
David Rogers, Principal, Southport Special School
one member who has ‘financial expertise’ as described in the Queensland Treasury publication, Audit Committee Guidelines — Improving accountability and performance 2008
Graham Smith, Deputy Director, Corporate and Information Services Division
one member with expertise in the industry in which the agency operates
Peter Jordan, Acting Deputy Director, Assessment and Reporting Division.
The committee held four meetings in 2012–13. During this period, it:
considered and approved the external audit strategy, and oversaw the internal and external audit processes
considered and gave clearance to the annual financial statements
had oversight of the process of revising the strategic risk assessment and the initiatives implemented to reduce and mitigate against the identified risks
reviewed its charter to incorporate changes to Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines.
The internal and external auditors have a standing invitation to attend meetings.
The Audit Committee observed the terms of its charter and had due regard to Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines.
Curriculum Committee
Functions are to:
provide advice to the Authority on the current directions in curriculum development for the early, middle and senior phases of schooling
review submissions of syllabuses, curriculum guidelines and other materials and make recommendations to the Authority about the suitability of such materials
provide advice on P–12 matters that the Authority may determine.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
three Authority members from each school sector
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
one nominee of DETE — training sector 
one parent nominee
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
one nominee of the Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch
one nominee of EQ — special education
one nominee of EQ — rural and remote
one nominee of QCEC — senior years
one nominee of ISQ — middle years
one nominee of EQ — early years
one nominee of the Queensland Indigenous Education Consultative Committee
two tertiary educators
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
Equity Committee
Functions are to:
provide expertise and advice to the Authority, and the Office of the Authority, on equity issues in education, relevant to the functions of the Authority
liaise with other committees of the Authority as required
represent the interests of groups at educational risk in the community.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
one nominee of DETE — training sector 
one nominee of the Queensland Indigenous Education Consultative Committee
one nominee of the Queensland Teachers’ Union
one nominee of the Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch
one practising teacher or school-based person with expertise in special education
one practising teacher with expertise in distance education
one nominee of the Queensland Association of Gifted and Talented Children
one researcher
one nominee of the Queensland 
Anti-Discrimination Commission
one nominee of the Queensland Guidance and Counselling Association
one nominee of the Queensland Association of Teaching English as a Second or Other Language
one nominee of the Ethnic Communities Council of Queensland
two parent nominees
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136553]Finance Committee
Functions are to:
oversee the development and approval of the annual budget
ensure that annual resource allocations are consistent with the strategic direction and operational priorities of the QSA
provide advice on major project and capital expenditure proposals or initiatives
monitor actual financial performance against budget and forecasts and provide advice on significant trends or variances
review the financial performance of major strategic initiatives
perform any other activities consistent with this charter that the Governing Body requests.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
two nominees of the Authority
executive officer — QSA officer.
Scaling Anomalies Committee
[bookmark: _Toc274045264][bookmark: _Toc300136561]Functions are to:
consider applications from schools for examination of their Queensland Core Skills (QCS) Test data where schools consider that exceptional circumstances may have resulted in lesser performance
examine data for schools that have a significant negative mismatch between within-school achievement and QCS Test data, and recommend measures to be implemented to help schools identify the reasons for the mismatch
confirm that special procedures, which are part of the calculation of equivalent Overall Positions (OPs), are working appropriately (such as those for visa schools)
consider cases identified by the Office of the QSA where the normal scaling procedures for the calculation of OPs might need to be varied because they are not operating as they were intended.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
one academic representative
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland
Deputy Director, Assessment and Reporting Division, QSA
Assistant Director, Analysis and Reporting Branch, QSA
Manager, Quantitative Analysis Unit, QSA
Manager, Qualitative Analysis Unit, QSA — executive officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136555]Tertiary Entrance Committee
Functions are to:
monitor developments on tertiary entrance matters and assist in the provision of informed advice about tertiary entrance matters
provide advice on the management of information and secondary–tertiary link programs that maximise the capacity of potential tertiary applicants to make informed choices and pursue tertiary studies.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
two university admissions managers
one TAFE admissions manager
one nominee of DETE with policy expertise relating to TAFE — university interface
one nominee of the Office of Higher Education, DETE 
one nominee of the Queensland Tertiary Admissions Centre
one nominee of the Australian Council of Private Education and Training
two guidance counsellors (state and non-state)
two student representatives
two tertiary student representatives
one parent nominee
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc300136556]Vocational Education and Training Committee
Functions are to:
provide advice to the Authority on emerging policies and issues relating to VET pathways at both the national and state levels
provide strategic advice to the Authority on the implementation of legislation in relation to VET at both the national and state levels
provide information to the Authority on issues relating to the implementation of VET in Queensland schools.
Membership comprises:
chair — Authority member
two nominees of DETE — training sector, one to include a TAFE practitioner
one nominee of the Australian Council for Private Education and Training
one nominee of industry
one nominee of Education Queensland
one nominee of the Queensland Catholic Education Commission
one nominee of Independent Schools Queensland 
two parents nominees
three practitioners (state, non-state and TAFE) with responsibility for VET
two principals/administrators (state and non-state) with responsibility for VET
one QSA senior officer
executive officer — QSA officer.
[bookmark: _Toc365984785]Fees paid to Board members
A total of $41 633 was payable to Authority members in 2012–13. This amount does not include associated meeting and travel costs of $23 854.
Further information relating to QSA’s expenditure on consultancies and overseas travel, and compliance with information systems and recordkeeping legislation can be found through the Queensland Government’s Open data website: www.qld.gov.au/data.
[bookmark: _Toc365984786]Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment
A program of redundancies was implemented during 2012–13. During the period, 12 employees received redundancy packages at a cost of $1 770 377. There were no early retirement or retrenchment packages.
[bookmark: _Ref363111331][bookmark: _Toc365984787]Key corporate governance committee of the QSA
Strategic Directions Group
Paul Herschell, Deputy Director, Curriculum Services Division
Peter Jordan, Acting Deputy Director, Assessment and Reporting Division
Peter Luxton, Acting Director (until December 2012)
John McGuire, Assistant Director, Policy Coordination Branch
Graham Smith, Deputy Director, Corporate and Information Services Division
Patrea Walton, Chief Executive Officer 
(from January 2013)
[bookmark: _Ref363552668][bookmark: _Toc365984788]
QSA district offices
Brisbane Central
Helen Best
Phone: (07) 3359 6131 Fax: (07) 3359 6387
Email: BrisbaneCentralOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Suite G1, 449 Gympie Rd, Kedron Qld 4031
[bookmark: _Toc300136565]Brisbane North
Judy Beadle
Phone: (07) 3859 6132 Fax: (07) 3359 6387
Email: UBrisbaneNorthOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Suite G1, 449 Gympie Rd, Kedron Qld 4031
[bookmark: _Toc300136566]Brisbane East
Elisabeth Case
Phone: (07) 3324 1072 Fax: (07) 3397 2955
Email: UBrisbaneEastOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Suite 6.01, 433 Logan Rd, 
Stones Corner Qld 4120
PO Box 686, Stones Corner Qld 4120
[bookmark: _Toc300136567]Brisbane South
Sally Dwyer
Phone: (07) 3397 3955 Fax: (07) 3397 2955
Email: UBrisbaneSouthOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Suite 6.01, 433 Logan Rd
Stones Corner, Qld 4120
PO Box 686, Stones Corner Qld 4120
[bookmark: _Toc300136568]Brisbane Ipswich
Andrew Sycz
Phone: (07) 3202 3325 Fax: (07) 3202 3347
Email: UBrisbaneIpswichOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Unit 2/56 Cascade St, Raceview Qld 4305
PO Box 860, Booval Qld 4304
[bookmark: _Toc300136569]Cairns
Carol Mcllwain
Phone: (07) 4054 6278 Fax: (07) 4054 3943
Email: UCairnsOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
455 Mulgrave Rd, Earlville Qld 4870
PO Box 122, Earlville 4870
[bookmark: _Toc300136570]Gold Coast
Sylvia Richardson
Phone: (07) 5591 4255 Fax: (07) 5591 4461
Email: UGoldCoastOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
1/8 Short St, Southport Qld 4215
PO Box 2005, Southport Qld 4215
[bookmark: _Toc300136571]

Mackay
Sandra Davis
Phone: (07) 4953 0977 Fax: (07) 4953 0988
Email: UMackayOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Mercury House
38 Wellington St, Mackay Qld 4740
PO Box 8163, Mt Pleasant Qld 4740
[bookmark: _Toc300136572]Rockhampton
Keren Chillingworth & Dian Hamilton
Phone: (07) 4927 7279 Fax: (07) 4922 6574
Email: URockhamptonOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Room 8, North Street Annex
Cnr North & West Sts
Rockhampton Qld 4700
PO Box 919, Rockhampton Qld 4700
[bookmark: _Toc300136573]Sunshine Coast
Amanda Poeppmann
Phone: (07) 5493 9452 Fax: (07) 5493 9451
Email: USunshineCoastOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Shop 3A, 710 Nicklin Way (Cnr Erang St)
Currimundi Qld 4551
PO Box 44, Wurtulla Qld 4575
[bookmark: _Toc300136574]Toowoomba
Marion Goebel
Phone: (07) 4638 3699 Fax: (07) 4638 5390
Email: UToowoombaOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
D Block, Toowoomba State High School
Via Peter St, Toowoomba Qld 4350
PO Box 572, Toowoomba 4350
[bookmark: _Toc300136575]Townsville
Nola Popowycz
Phone: (07) 4728 8485 Fax: (07) 4728 8486
Email: UTownsvilleOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
F Block, Heatley Secondary College
Hanlon St, Heatley Qld 4814
PO Box 207, Aitkenvale Qld 4814
[bookmark: _Toc300136576]Wide Bay
Diane Armstrong
Phone: (07) 4123 1612 Fax: (07) 4121 6811
Email: UWideBayOffice@qsa.qld.edu.au
Maryborough State High School
Block Z, Rooms 814–817, 
Sussex St, Maryborough Qld 4650
PO Box 452, Maryborough Qld 4650



[bookmark: _Toc365984789]Reader evaluation of the Annual Report 2012–13
Please take some time to answer the following questions, to help the QSA communicate effectively with you. 
To indicate your response, please circle the appropriate number for each question as follows:
	0 = Unable to respond
	1 = Very poor
	2 = Poor
	3 = Acceptable
	4 = Very good
	5 = Excellent




Did the Annual Report achieve its communication objectives? (see page 2)
	0	1	2	3	4	5
What did you think of the content?
Value of information
	0	1	2	3	4	5
Presentation
	0	1	2	3	4	5
Did the design of the report make it easy to read?
Layout of information
	0	1	2	3	4	5
Type and colour
	0	1	2	3	4	5
Overall, how would you rate the report?
	0	1	2	3	4	5

	Please return to:
Policy Coordination Branch
Queensland Studies Authority
Reply Paid 307, Spring Hill QLD 4004
Fax: (07) 3864 0406



What client group do you come from?
(Please tick appropriate box) 
School staff
State	
Catholic	
Independent	
Student
Secondary	
Tertiary	
Education authority	
State	
Catholic	
Independent	
Parent
State	
Catholic	
Independent	
Tertiary institution
University	
TAFE	
Union	
Employer	
Queensland Government	

Other comments











	
	
	
	



[bookmark: Abbreviations]Abbreviations and acronyms


ACACA	Australasian Curriculum, Assessment and Certification Authorities
ACARA	Australian Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting Authority
ASQA	Australian Skills Quality Authority
CCAFL	Collaborative Curriculum and Assessment Framework for Languages
DETE	Department of Education, Training and Employment
EQ	Education Queensland
ESL	English as a Second Language
F	Foundation
FP	Field Position
ICT	Information and communications technology
IEUA–QNT	Independent Education Union of Australia — Queensland and Northern Territory Branch
ISQ	Independent Schools Queensland
K	Kindergarten
NAPLAN	National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy
OP	Overall Position
P, Prep	Preparatory Year
QCAT	Queensland Comparable Assessment Task
QCE	Queensland Certificate of Education
QCEC	Queensland Catholic Education Commission
QCIA	Queensland Certificate of Individual Achievement
QCS	Queensland Core Skills (Test)
QKLG	Queensland kindergarten learning guideline
QSA	Queensland Studies Authority
LASDs	Learning area standards descriptors
RTO	registered training organisation
SDCS	Student Data Capture System
SEP	Senior Education Profile
SLIMS	Senior Learning Information Management System
TAFE	Technical and Further Education
TSXPO	Tertiary Studies Expo
VET	vocational education and training


	

	

	Queensland Studies Authority
154 Melbourne Street, South Brisbane
PO Box 307 Spring Hill 
QLD 4004 Australia
T +61 7 3864 0299
F +61 7 3221 2553
www.qsa.qld.edu.au
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Queensland Studies Authority
‘Statement of Comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2013
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Employee expenses
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Other expenses.
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

‘Operating Result from Continuing Operations
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Total Comprehensive Income

The accompanying notes form partof these statements
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Queensland Studies Authority
‘Statement of Financial Position
a5 3t 30 June 2013

213 2012
Notes 000 000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 12505 10738
Receivables 1 516 08
Inventories 12 32 8
Prepayments 21 199
Total Current Assets — . S—Y
Non-Current Assets
Itangible assels 13 a7es 5602
Plant and equipment 14 58 73
Total Non-Current Assets Do— v — 1
Total Assets fo— 1 o—
Current Liabilties
Payables 15 3742 3463
Accrued employee benefts 1 1789 2101
Unearned revenue 27 21
Total Current Liabilties — —

Total Liabilties fo— . S—.i
Net Assets — . —

Equity
ottt sqky s o
o e 15 %5
Toal Equity . oo .28

The accompanying notes form part ofthese satements
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Queensland Studies Authority
‘Statement of Changes In Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Accumulated Contributed otal
Surplus Equity

2013 2012 2013 2012 2018 2012

$000  $000  $000  $000  $000 000

Balance as at 1 July 7232 6707 4832 48| 12084 11539

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 213 55 SBas s

Balance as at 30 June 7257 a5 2084

The accompanying notes form partof these statements
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Queensland Studies Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013
Notes 5000
Cash flows from operating ativites
inflous
User charges. 1,770
Grants and other contributions. 38527
Intrest recepts &0
ST input ta cred fom Ausiralian Taxation Offce 1200
GST calected from customers 81
Other &
Outtows:
Employee expenses @08y
‘Supplies and services (11.626)
Grants and subsides @)
GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office (149)
GST paid to suppliers (1.464)

Otner it

2012
5000

2528
22
S21
1,445
256
£

@8822)
(13127)
83
(1403

(1 157
Net cash provided by operating activities 7 :{bzm

Cash flows from Investing activities
Outtons:

Payments for plant and equipment. ()

Payments for nangibles ) 162,
Net cash used In investing activities
1766

Net cash Increase In cash and cash equivalents
‘Gash and cash equivalents a beginning of financial year 10;

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 10

The accompanying notes form part of these statoments.
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Queensland Studies Authority
Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements.
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Note:
Note:
Note
Note
Note:
Note:
Note
Note
Note:
Note:
Note
Note
Note
Note
Note:
Note
Noe
Note
Note
Note

Nte:

Objectives and principal aciviies of the Queensiand Studies Authorly
1 Summary of significant accouning poiicies.
2 User Charges
3 Grants and other Contributons
4 Employee Expenses
5 Key Execive Management Personnel and Remuneration
6 Supplies and Services
7 Depreciation and Amortisation
8 Impairment Losses.
9 Other Expenses.
10 Cash and Cash Equivalerts
11 Receivables
12 Inventories
13 Intangble Assets.
14 Plant and Equipment
15 Payables
16 Accrued Employee Benefits
17 Reconcliation of Operating Suplus to Net Cash from Operating Activites
18 Commitments for Expenditure
19 Contingencies
20 Financial Instuments

21 Remuneration of Board Members
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Queensland Studies Authority
Notes To and Forming Part o the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Obiectives and principa activites of the Queensland Studies Authority

The Queensiand Studies Authorty was eslablished as a statulory authorly under the Education (Queensiand Studies Authort) Act 2002
I abjective i o provide qualty, innovative and future-focused products and services o assistal Queensiand education communites.

“The Authorty provides Kindergarten to Year 12 syllbuses and guidelines, asssssment, reporting,testing, accrediatin, certication and
tertary enirance services for Queensiand schools.

In June 2012, the Miniser directed the Department of Education, Training and Employment to conduct a eview of the legisiation and
operatins ofthe QSA

The Government has considared the review findings and has provided directon on a way forward. s expected that draftegisiaton will be
avallable for consultaton wih stakeholders by September 2013, with @ view {0 new legisiation commencing i July 2014,

1 Summary of significant accounting polices.

@

®)

©

“

@

o

@

Statement of Compliance

‘The Queensiand Studies Authorty has prepared these inancialstatements n complance with secton 43 of the Financial and
Pertormance Management Standard 2008

These fiancial statements are general purpose financialstatements, and have been prepared on an accrual basis n accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and nterpretatons. n addition,the financialstatements comply vith Queensiand Treasury and
Trade's Minimum Reporting Requiements fo the year ended 30 June 2013, and other authortaive pronouncements.

Wi respect to complance with Australian Accounting Standards and Inerpretations, the Queensiand Studies Aulhoriy has applied
those requirements appiicable o notforproft entities, as the Authorty is 3 natfo-proft entiy. Except where sated. he historcal cost
convention is tsed.

The Reporting Entity

“The financil tatements incude the value of all ncome, expenses, assets, abities and equiy of the Authorty

User Charges.

User charges and fees controlled by the Authory are recognised as revenues when the revenue has been eamed and can be
measured reliably wih a sufficient degree of certainty. This nvolves either inoicing for related goodsservices andlor the recogritin of
accrued revenue, User charges and fees are controlled by the Authorty where they can be deployed forthe achievement of s
objectives

Grants and Contributions

Grants, contributions, donations and gifs that are
obiains conlrol over them (contol i generally obta
fevenue s recognised over the term of the funding anangements.

(Contributed assets are recognised at ther fir value. The accounting reatment for contributions of services is expiained n Note 1(u).
Gash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement o Financal Positon and the Siatement of Cash Flows, cash assafs inciude al cash and cheques.

receipted but not banked at 30 June, deposts at call wih financial Insttions and shortterm Investmenisideposts maluring within 3
months from the end of the financial year.

Trads debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of saleor service delivery . the agreed purchase/contract price.
Settement of hese amounts s required wihin 30 days from invoice date

“The callectabilty of receivables is assessed periodically wih provision being made for impaifent, Allknown bad debls were witen off
or provided against as 2t 30 June

Inventories held fo sale are valued atthe ower of cost and et realisable value. Cost s assigned on a weighted average basis and
ncludes expendture ncurred in acquirng the nventories and binging them {0 their existing condtion, except fo raining costs which
are expensed as incurred.

Nt realsable value s determined on the basis ofthe Authory's normal seling patien. Experses associated with marketing, seling
and disrbution are deducted fo determine net realisable val.
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Queensland Studies Authority
Notes To and Forming Part o the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013
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Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets held for sale consist of those assats that management has determined are avallab for immediate sale in thelr

present condltion, for which ther sale s highy prabable within the next teive morths.

These assets are measured at the ower of the assets' camying amounts and their far values less cos's o sell. Such assets are no
longer amortised of depreciated upon being classified as held for sale. At 30 June 2013, the Authorty did not hokd any non-current
assets for sae

Acquisitions of assets.
Actual cost s used for the intial recording of all non-current physical and intangible asset acquistions. Cost s determined as the value:
given s consideration plus costs ncidental o the acquisitn, incuding alother Costs ncurred In getig the asses readly fo use.
However, any training costs ae expensed as ncurred.

Where assets are received free of charge from & Queensiand department (whether as a result of a machinery-of-Government change
or other involuntarytranster),the acaisiton cost s recognised a5 the gross carrying amount n the books of the transferor Immedately
pror to the transfe together with any accumulated deprecaton.

‘Assets acquired at no costor for nominal consideration, other than flom an involuntary traner rom another Queensiand Goverment
enti, are recognised at ther far value at the date of acquision i accordance with AASB 118 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Plant and Equipment

Hems of plant and equipment with a cost orother value equal o o n excess of $5,000 are recognised fo inancial reporting purposes.
In the year of acquistion. tems wih a lesser valus are expensed i the year of acquistion.

Revaluations of Non-Current Physical and Intangible Assets
Where intangible assets have an active marke, they are measured at fair value; thervise they are measured at cost.

Plant and equipment s measured at cost i accordance vith Queensiand Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset Palices or the
Queensiand Puble Sector

Materality concepts under AASB 1031 Materisty are considered in defermining whether the diference between the carrying amount
and the fai value of an asset is materia.

Intangibles.
Intangible assets with a cost or ther value equal o or reater than $100.000 ae recogrised in the financial satements, fers ith 3

lesser value being expensed. Each inangibl asset, less any antcipated fesidual value, s amortised over s estimated useful lfe o
the Authorty. The resdual value s zero for al he Authority's intangibie assets.

It has been determined that there i ot an active marke forany of the Authoity' ntangible assets. As such,the assets are
fecognised and carred at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated mpaifmen losses.

No intangible assets have been classifid as held for sae or form partof  disposal group held for sale,
Interaly Generated Software

Expendiure on research acivies elaing o ntemaly-generated ntangible assets s recognised as an expense i the period n which
tis incurred.

‘Goss associated with the development of computr software have been captalised and are amortsed on a sraight.ine basis over the
period of expected beneft o the Authory, namely 75 1o 10 years.

Amortisation and Depreciation of Intangibles and Plant and Equipment
Alintangivle assets of the Authorty have fte usefu ives and are amorised on a straght ine basis.

Plant and equipment s depreciated on a staightne bass so as o allocate the net cos, less s estmated residual value,
progressively over s estmated useful e to the Authorky.

Assets under constructon (work-n-progress) are not depreciated unti they reach service delivery capacy. Service delivery capacity
elates fo uhen consiructon is complete and the asset s irst put to use or i nstaled readyfor use n accordance with s ntended
application. These assets are then reclassifled fo the relevant classes within either plant and equipment or infangibies.

Where assets have separately dentifable components that are subject o ether reguiar replacement, these components are assigned
uselul ves disinct from the asset to which they elate and are depreciated accordingly.

‘Any expendiure that increases the originally assessed capasity or service potential o an assel s captalsed and the new depreciable
amount is deprecated over the remaining useful e of the asset to the Authory.

The depreciable amount ofleasehold improvemensis allocated progressively over the estimated useful s o the improvements of
the unexgired period of the lease, whichever s the shorter. The unexpired period of eases incudes any option period where exercise
“of e otion & prebeble:
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Queensland Studies Authority
Notes To and Forming Part o the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013
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For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation and amortsaion rates are used:

Class Depreciation/Amortisation rate
Plant and equipment
Computer equipment 10% 10 21%
Offce equipment 10% to 20%
Print equipment 12% 10 20%
Leasehold improvements 12% to 5%
Intangible assets
‘Soware inemally generated 10% to 13%

Impairment of Non Current Assets.

Al non.current physical and intangibie assats are assessed for indicators of mpairment on an annual basis. I an indicator of possible
impairment exiss, the Authorty determines the assals recoverable amourt. Any amourt by which the asset' carrying signifcanty
xceeds the fecoverable amaunt s recorded 25 an impairment loss.

The asset's recoverable amount i determined as the higher of !
cost.

‘assers far value less costs o sell and depreciated replacement

‘An impairment oss i recognised immediately i the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Where an impaifment loss subsequenty reverses, the carying amount o the asset i increased 1o the revised estimate of s
recoverable amount, but so that the ncreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no Impairment oss been recognised for the asset inpror years. A reversal of an Impaiment loss s recogrised as income

Lease
A distincton is made i the financial statements betvieen finance leases that effectvely ransfer rom the lessor to the lessee.
‘substantily i rsks and benefis incidental to ovnership, and operating eases, under which the essor retains substantially il isks
and benefis. The Authorty has no finance leases.

‘Operating lease payments are representative ofthe patten of benefts derived ffom the leased assets and are expensed n the periods
i which they are incurred.

Incenties received on entering ino operating leases are recognised as fablles. Lease payments are alocated between rental
expense and reduction o the labilty.

Payables.
Trade creditors are recognised upon recelpt ofthe goads or services ordered and are measured at the nominal amount e, agreed
purchassicontractprice, gross of applicable rade and ofhr discounts. Amaunis owing are unsecured and are generally setied on 30
daytems.
Financial Instruments
Recognition
Financil assets and financial labltes are recognised in the Statement o Financial Position when the Authorty becomes party o the
contractualprovisions of the financil instrument
Glassiication
Financil instruments are classified and measured as folows:

" Cash and Cash equivalents - held at fair value through profit and loss.

« Receivables - held at amortised cost

« Payables - held at amortised cost

“The Authorty does not enter into transactions for specalative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivalents,the
Authorty hokds no fnancial assets classified at fair value thiough profit and loss.

Al disclosures relating t the measurement bass and financial isk management of other fnancial instruments held by the Authorty
are incuded i Note 20,

Employee Benefits
Employer superannuaton contribution, annual eave and the long service leave levy are regarded as employee benefts.

Payrol tax and workers' compensation insurance are a conssquence of employing employees, but are not counted n an employee's
remuneration package. They are not employee benefts and are recognised separately as employee related expenses.

Wages, salaries, annual feave and sick feave

Wages, salaries and annual leave due but unpaid at reportng date are recognised in the Statement of Financial Postln at the currert
salary rates.
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013
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For unpaid enttlements expected (o be paid within 12 months, the labiltes are recognised at their undiscounted values. Enttements
ot expecied to be paid wihin 12 months are classifed as non-current iabilfies and recognised at thei present value, calcuated using
yields on Fixed Rate Commornwealih Goverment bonds of similar maturty, after projecting the remuneration rates expected 1o apply
atthe time of kel settiomen.

Prior history ndicates that on average, sickleave taken each reporting perod i lessthan the entilement accrued. Thisis expecied (o
continue in future periods. Accordingy, it s unilkely that exising accumiated entilements il be used by employees and no ablty
for unused sickleave entitements i recognised.

A8 sick leay

is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as t s taken.
Long servie leave

Under the Queensiand Government’ long service eave scheme. a levy is made on the Authory 1o cover the costof employees'long
service leave, The levies are expensed in the period I which they are payable. Amounts paid o employees forlong serice leave are
climed from the scheme quarterty n arrears.

No provision for long service leave is recognised n the Authorty's financialstatements, th liablty being held on a whole-of-
government basis and reported In those financial statemen's pursuant to AASB 1048 Whale of Government and General Goverment
Sector Financil Reporting.

‘Superannuation

Employer superannuation contributons are paid fo QSuper, the superannuation plan for Queensland Govemment employees at rates
determined by the Treasurer o the advice of the State Actuary. Contributions are expensed inthe period in which they are paid or
payabl. The Authorty's oblgaton i imted t s contributon to QSuper.

“The QSuper scheme has defned beneft and defined conlrbution categories. The fiabilty for defned benefs s held on a whole-of-
‘Government basis and reported n those fnancial statements pursuant {o AASB 1048 Whole of Goverment and General Government
Sector Finandil Reportig

Koy oxecutive management personnel and remuneration

Key executive management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made In accordance with section 5 of the Financial Repoting
Requirements for Queensiand Govermment Agencies ssued by Queensiand Treasury and Trade. Refer (o note 5 fo the disclosures on
Key executive management personnel and remuneration

Provisions

Provisions are recorded when the Authorty has a present obligation, ether legal or constuctie as.a result o a past event. They are
recognised at the amount expecied at reporting date for which the oblgation wil e sattied i a uture period. Where the settiement of
the obligation is expected afer 12 or more months, the obiigation s dscounted o the present value using an appropriae discount ate.

Insurance.
“The Authrty's non-current physical assets and other isks are insured trough the Queensland Government Insurance Fund,
premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. In additon, the Authorty pays premiums to WorkCover Queensiand i fespect of s
oblgations for employee compensation

Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value

Contributins of seruces are recogrised only Ifthe services would have been purchased i they had not been donated and thei fair
Value can be measured reliably. Where this s the case, an equsl amount s fecognised as fevenue and an expense.

Contributed Equity
Non-reciprocal ransfers of assets and labiltes between wholy-owned Queensiand State Publc Sector enies s resuft of
machinery-of.Government changes are adjusied to Contrbuted Equiy in accordance with nterprtation 1038 Contibutons by
Ouners Hade to Wholl-Onned Pubic Sector Entes. Appropritions for equiy adjusiments are simiarly designated.

Taxation

The Authartyis @ State body as defined under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exemp from Commonwealth taxation with
the exception of Fringe Benefts Tax (FET) and Goods and Servioes Tax (GST). FBT and GST are the only axes accounted or by te.
‘Queensiand Studies Authorly. GST credts receivable rom, and GST payabie fo the ATO, are recoghised (rfer o note 11).

Issuance of Financial Statements

“The fiancial statements are authorsed for isue by the Acting Chair and Acting Chief Exective Offcer at the date of signing the
Management Certcate.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

‘The preparation of financialstatements necessarly requires the determination and use of certain crical accourting estmaes,
‘assimptions; and mansgament jucpements St heve that polenial 1o caums 8 material sdiistrant io the carring Snmounts of Sseiti
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‘and abiltes within the next fnancialyear. Such estimates, fudgements and underlying assumplons are reviewed on an ongoing
asis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised i the period n which the esimate i revised and in fture periods s relevant

‘The Ausiralian government passed s Clean Energy Act in November 2011 which resulted inthe ntroduction of a price on carbon
emissions made by Australian businesses from 1 July 2012

“The flexibie market.based price phase of the carbon prcing mechanism will commence on 1 July 2015. It will be preceded by a three-
year perod during which the price of permis wil be fixed at $23 per tonne or carbon dexide equivalent I year one, $24.15 In year two
nd 525,40 i year thee.

Secton 434 of Queensiand Treasury and Trade's eport on ‘Carbon Price Impacts for Queensiand' dated August 2011 indicates tha,
for non-esidential construction actiites, costs may ncrease by betveen 0.7 per cent and 08 per cent over the period 20121310
201516,

On ths basis and ather information avaiable, the ntoduction of the carbon pricing mechanis is not expected to have a signficant
impactan Queensiand Studies Authory's it accounting estimates, assumptions and management judgermens

Rounding and Comparatives

‘Amounts included In the firancial statements are n Austalian dolars and have been founded to the nearest $1,000,or, where the
‘amount is $500 o less, o zero, uniess discosure of the ful amount s specificall required.

‘Comparative Information has been restated where necessary to be cansistent with disclosures n the current reportng period.
New and Revised Accounting Standards.

“The Authorty did ot voluntariy change any of s accounting polices during 2012-13. Austalian Accounting Standard changes
‘applicable or the frsttime for 2012-13 have had minimal efect o the Auhortys inancial satements, as explained below.

'AASS 2011-8 Amendments to Australlan Accounting Standards — Presenttion oflems of Other Comprehensie Income [AASB 1, 5.
7,101, 112, 120, 121, 132. 133, 134, 1039 & 1049] became effctie from reportng periods beginning on or afer 1 Juy 2012 The
oy impact for the Queensland Studies Authorty s tht, i the Statement of Comprehensive |ncome, tems wiin the ‘Other
‘Comprehensive Income saction are now presented in iferent sub-sections, according o whether of not they are subsaquently
classifable o the operating resul. Whether subsequent reciassficatin is possibl depends upon the requirements o cieria I the
‘accounting standardinterpretation thet elates to the fem concemed

“The Authartyis ot permited to early adopt a new or amended accounting standard ahead of the specified commencement date
uriess approval i btained ffom the Queensiand Treasury and Trade. Cansequenty, the Queensiand Studies Authorty has not
‘applied any Australlan Accouniing Standards and Inerpretations that have been issued but are notyet efectve. The Authorty applies
Standards and inerpretations in accordance wilh helr fespecive commencament cates.

At he date of authorisaton ofthe inancialreport,the expected impacts of new or amended Austalian Accounting Standards with
uture commencement dates are s set out below.

'AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement apples from reportng periods beginning on o afer 1 January 2013. AASB 13 sefs outa new
defnion ofai value’, s well as new priniples o be applied when defermining the fei value of assets and labilfies. The new
requirements wil appy 0 alof the Queensiand Studies Aulhorily's assets and iabiites (excluding eases) hat e measured and/or
disciosed at fa value or another measarement based on ai value. The poteniial mpacts of AASE 13 relae to the fair value
measurement methodologies used and financialstatement disclosures made In respect of such assels and labiltes.

'AASB 13 wil require an increased amourt ofinformation t be disclosed n elaton o fai value measarements fo both assets and
Hiabilties. To the extent that any far value measurement for an asset o iabilty uses data tha s not ‘observable’ utside the Authorty,
the amount of informaion to be clsclosed willbe relatvely geater.

Arevised version of AASB 119 Employea Benefts applies ffom reporting periods beginning on of after 1 January 2013, The revised
'AASB 119 is generally t be applied retrospectively. One of the Implicatons for the Authorty is tha the revised standard carfes the
concept of temination benefits', and the recagniton critria or labiies fo termination beneffs wil be different.f termination beneffs.
meet the timeffame crieron for ‘shorterm employee benefis", they wil be measured according o the AASB 118 requiremens for
short{erm employes benefis”. Otherwise,termination benets wil need to be measured according o the AASB 119 requiremens for
“alher long-lerm employee benefis" Under the revised standard, the recagnition and measurement of empioyer obligations fo ‘other
ong-term employe benefls" il need o be accounted for according to most of the requirements for defined benalit pians.

“The other impiicaton for the Authorty of the revised AASB 119 i the changed crteria for accounting for employee benefis as “short-
term employee beefi”. Under the revised AASB 119, only beneffs expecied to be settied wholy wihin 12 months after the end of
the reportng period In which the employees render the related service are classfied as ‘short-emn employee benefs”. Due o this
change inciteron, annual feave will be classifed as‘long-term employee benefs” and discounled to s present value. However,this
change has minima impact on long-service leave as the Authorty is a member ofthe Queensiand Government ceriral scheme. The
revised ARSB 119 also includes changed requirements for the measurement of employer labiesiasses arising from defined benefit
plans, and the measurement and presentation of changes in such fabilties/assets. The Queensland Studies Authorty ony conlributes
o QSuper, and the corresponding QSuper employer beneft obigaton s held by the Stafe.

'AASB 1053 Applicaton of Tiers of Australian Accouniing Standards applies as fom reporting periods beginring on or afer 1 July
2013 AASB 1053 establishes a diferential reporting ffamework for hose enties that prepare general purpose fnancal statemens,
consistng o two ters of reporting requirements — Austalian Accounting Standards (commnly referred t as Tier 1), and Australian
‘Aocounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements (commonly relerred to as “Tier 2). Tier 1 requirements comprise the ful
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range of AASB recogntin, measurement,presentation and disclosure requirements that are currenty applicabl to reporting entties
n Australi. The oniy difference between the Tie 1 and Ter 2 equirements i that Tier 2 requies fewer disciosures than Tr 1

Detalls of which disciosures n standards and interpretatins are not required under Tier 2 reporting are set out in amending standards
AASB 2010-2, AASB 2011-2, AASB 2011-6 and AASB 2011-11 (hich also apply from reportng periods beginning on o afer 1 July
2013). However, Queensland Treasury and Trade's Financial Reporting Requirements effectiely do not alow applcation of AASB
2011-61n respect of contraled entiies, associates o interests nfinty controlled entits.

Pursuant to AASB 1053, puble sector eniies ke the Queensiand Studies Authorty may adopt Tier 2 equirements for thelr general
purpose financial statements. However. AASS 1053 acknowledges the power of a regulator o require appication ofthe Tier 1
requirements. In the case of the Queensland Studies Authorty, Queensiand Treasury and Trade is the reguiator. Queensiand Treasury.
and Trade has advised that s polcy decision isto require adoption of Tir 1 reportng by alstatutory bodies that are consolidated into
the whole-of-Government fnancial statements. Therefore, the felease of AASB 1053 and assocated amending standards will have no
impacton the Queensiand Studies Authorty.

“The folowing new and revised standards apply as from reporting perods beginning on or aftr 1 January 2014 —

'AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.
AASB 11 Joint Arangements.

'AAS 12 Disclosure o Iferests in Otter Enes:

ARSB 127 (revised) Separate Financial Statements

'AASB 128 (revised) Investmens n Assaciates and Joint Ventures ;and

ARS8 20117 Amendments to Austraian Accounting Standards aising from the Consoidation and Joint Arrangements
Standards [AASB 1.2, 3, 5, 7, 8. 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124,132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpetatons 5.9, 16 & 17].

The ARSS is planning to amend AASS 10. Such amendments are expected to clariy how the IASS' principles about conirol of enties
shouid be appiied by ot forproft enities n an Ausialian context. Hence, the Queensland Studies Authorty is o yet i a poston to
relaby determine the fuure implications of these new and revised standards for the Authorty's financialstalements.

'ARS 10 redefines and carifies the concept ofcontrol o anather etiy, which s the bass for determining Which entties shoud be
consalidated nto an entiy's financialsatements. Therefore, once the AAS finaises s not{or-proftt amendments to AASB 10, the
‘Queensiand Studies Authorty wil need to fe-assess the nature of s relationships wih oiher entiies,incuding entiies that aren'
Gurently consolidated

'AASB 11 deals with the concept o oint control and sets out new principle for determining the type ofoint arrangement that exists,
‘which in tun dictates the accourting treatment. The new categories of fint arangements Under AASE 11 are more aligned to the
actual ights and obigations of the partes o the arangement. Subject o any nat-for-proft amendments fo be made to AASB 11, the.
Queensiand Studies Authorty wil need o assess the nature of any arrangements ith other enities to determine whether a oini
artangement exists i terms of AAS 11.1fa ot arangement does exist, the Queensiand Stucies Authory wil need o folow the
relevant accouling freatment specifid n ether AASB 11 or the revised AASB 12, depending on the nature of the font arangement

'ARSB 1055 Budgetary Reporting applies fom reporting periods beginning on or ater 1 July 2014. From that date, based on whatis
curently published In the Queensiand Goverment's Budgetary Service Delvery Statements, this means the Queensiand Studies
‘Authorty wil need {0 include In these financialstatements the original budgeted statements for the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Financial Poston, Statement of Changes n Equty. and Statement of Cash Flows. These budgeted statemerfs.
will need to be presented consistenly wih the corresponding (aciual) financia satements, and wil be accompanied by explanations
of majo variances between the actual amounts and the corresponding budgeted firancil satement,

'AASB 9 Financis! Instruments (December 2010) and ARSE 2010-7 Amendments to Ausialian Accounting Standards arsing fom
AASB 9 (Decomber 2010) [AASE 1,3, 4, 5, 7 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 2.5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] become effectve rom reporting periods beginning on or ater 1 January 2015 The main impacls
of these standards on the Queensland Studies Authoty are that they vill change the requirements for the dlassiication, measurement
‘and disclosures associated with the Authoriy's inancial assets. Under the new requiremants, fnancial assets il be more simply
lassifed according to whether they are measred at sther amortised costor fa value. Pursuantto AASB 9, inancial assets can only
be measured at amortised cost i two conditons are met. One of these conditions i that the asset must be held withn a business.
model whose objective s to hald assets in order to calect coniractual cash flows. The ofher condition is that the coniractualterms of
the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows tha are solely payments of principal and iterest o the principal amourt.
outstanding.

The Queensiand Studies Authorty has commenced reviewing the measurement of s fiancial assets agains the new AASS &
Glassifcation and measurement requirements. However. as the ciassificaton of inancil assets at the date of ntial applcatin of
'AASB 9 willdepend on thefacts and circumsiances exising a that date, the Authort's conciusions wil ot be conifmed uni loser
o that time. Al his stage, and assuming 1o chiange i the types of ransactions the Queensland Studies Authoriy enfers info, it s not
expected that any of the Autoriy' inancial assets wil meet the Citeria in AAS S to be measured at amortised cost. Therefore, as
fom 2015-16 financial satements. ll f the Autnoriys financial assats are expecied 1o be required fo be measured atfirvalue, and
classifed accordingly (nstead of the measurement dlassifications presertly used In Noles 1(q) and 20). The same cassifcaton wilbe
used fo net gains/osses recognised inthe Statement of Comprenensive Income in respect ofthase financial assets. I the case o the
Authorty's curtent receivabies. as they are shortterm in nature, the carying amount s considered o be a reasonable approximation of
airvalue,

Al other Australian accourting standards and inerpretations with fuure commencement dates are eithr ot appiicable to the
‘Authoriy's activities,or have o material impact on the Authority.
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2013 2012

2 UserCharges 000 000
Visa studert fees. a19 3

‘Sale of publications, syllabuses, past papers 2 £
Workshopsicorferences. m 1137
Copyrightfees 25 159
Atainment cerficate statements 01 119
Examinations 62 s
NAPLAN trial marking 125 q

Other 167 104

o . o—

3 Grants and other Contributions.

Grants 7329 a2
Employee separation costs contributions * 1198 -
Total —————

4 Employee Expenses.

Employee benefits:
Wages and safaries 20264 2684
Anrval leave * 1432 1846
Employer superannuation contrbutions * 235 2676
Long service leave levy * 289 30
Redundancies 1221 -

Employee related expenses.

Workers compensation premium * 2 2

Payrolltax* 1210 1326

Other employee related expenses 130 71
Total fo— [ —

* Refer o Note 1)
“The number of employees ncluding both ulltime employees and partime employees measured ona fulime equivalent basis is:

2013 2012
Number of Employees: 21 247
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5 Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration

(a) Key Executive Management Personnel

The following detais for key execuive management personnel includs those posions that had authoity and responsiilty for
planning,directing and conirling the actvties of the Queensiand Studies Authorty during 2012-13. Furher information on these:
posiions can be found n the body of the Annual Report under the section relating to Execulive Management.

e Teumberts

Date Appoinied o posiion

epoing. The poiion ako lads he ovie f sylabuses
Jand curicuu dovelopment it  prt focus on
Jemplamentaion of e Austaian Curicaun.

Postion Responsibites Contctdemnton s ) vy
s i positon)
T Exaeute Offcar|The G Execive Ofcar & espanab o paviding e B Ol [Coas S dats TV,
| provioush known as fohica o the inier onsralogc educatonlssues and _ classfcation ool SES 4 under fonrac compltion date
Ioeecor [manages th iat, nctons nd rsoteces o the Offcsof[seons 59and 80 of e Education (31122017
o GSA i sccordance it eevant gition | Quoorsiand St Auborty) Act
ooz,
[cing Bvecior [T vectr v roponal o proviing s07e s [Posiion v subainiely vacant [ Diecer S 10
[iniciron strtegi educatona sues and marages h. oo resignation of he Dvecor n (271042009, insh dte
. unctions snd resources.of the Ofis oftha GSA n 2010 o201
ccoxdanco wh teant oyton [The ActingDiecor vas o
sesestionlvel SES 3 (tigh) under
8 of ho Ecucaton Quoonsiand
[Suos Authory) Act 2002
(oo Biocior [T Doy Do, Curesom Sarvos o oo [CBesTeaton ferel SES 2 () v [Corrad ar ao T8G272008.
|Curcuum Senicos |development, impomentaon nd promaton of QSA's [cccons 110 and 113f the Publi —[contactcompotn date
[owisn [pokor appecach o curiculum,laing, asessent and —[Sonico At 2008 [7oarz0ta

[ By D,
[ncsecemant sna

[Reporting Dvison

(T oty Dot Assawement and Reporing e
rspansefor he development and iplementon of
[sratoies o support QSA'sassescmontcapabity and o
[manage th quay asuranco procasees for GSA's tosing.
[ortficton and assossment uncens. e poion s s
epanitiofor e rlease of accuras sudant achiovemont

{Rci, Dy Dvedor clasaicton R Doy Dvedor sar Gt
v SES 2 () undor section 112 (27042009, i ot
o he Public Sarvis Ack 2008 losoz0na.

[y st
[carporatoand
Infomston Servioss
[ovison

e Difecor Copore 37 Wmalon Sevioss &
Jacooutabefor the dfiver o tateg corporaloctcomes.
[ he dovelopmen, imlementaon and avaation of
|G coparale and nformaton tchnology governance
Janangemaris

(Gt TreT SE5 2 Lo er [ S G OYO22008 corit
Joctons 110304 113 o he Puble  compltion dato G3022015
[Sarvics Act 2008

[Fesiant vt P
ooxdnaton Branc

[The st Diecor. oty Coordination povies h
vel advioson overmment eatoship managerment and
Joorinaos polcy dovelopment and communicatn of GSA
[ptor and inormaton o sakenokors.

[Soior Offor caesfater vel unde [Apporinart s TET02007
Jocions 11604 119 ot he Publ.
[Sanvics Act 2008

(b) Remuneration

Remunration poly or he agency’s Ky executive management personnal s set by o Quensiand Public Service Commission 35 provided
fo undor the PublicService Act 2008. The rmuncration and othe tarms of sploymant or o key execulive managamant personnelaro
Specifid n employment contact, The cantractsprovid fr the provison of benafis nclding mlor vahicies.
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5 Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration (continued)
For ho 2012-13 yoar,remuneration of Koy executive managemant personinel increased by 2 2% i accordance vh government polcy.
Romunoration packages for key oxecutive management parsonnl compisa the folowing compenarts:-
+ Shorttorm amployos benes whih includo:
O Basa -consistig of base saary,alowances and leave entiements pad and providd fo the anre yea o or tht part o the year
duing whichtho omployeo occupied the spacfed poitin. Amounts dislosed equal the armount expensad In the Sttament of

Comprehensive Income.
O Nonmenetary benefts — consising ofprovision of vahicl together wih finge benefts tax applicabe to the benef.

+Long torm emloyoe benefts nclude long serviceleave acerued.
~Post omployment benefis nclde superannuatin contributions.

+Rocdundancy payments are notprovided fo witin indhidual conracts o employmant, Contracts of employment povide oy fo natica paiods
or payment i e o naice on trmination,regardiess ofth reason fr terminatin

~Performance bonuses e not paid under the conracts n plac.

Total e remuneratin s calculated on ot cost basis and ncudes the bas
post employment bensis.

1 non-manatary benefs, long arm employes benefis and

1 July 201230 June 2013

LongTem  post
Short Torm Enployes Benetts  Employes  Empioyment ToITiTalon | Tol
Benefits Benefits. e -

Postion Non-monetary

Lo fuiseong som0 somn s s

om0
it Exacutve Offcr o P 2 " E 124
Aotng Drecior 104 .4 2 » 154 26
Deputy Diectr,
s Sonico Dhison 154 = s » 20
etng Oepay Deecr
Assessment and Reporting Division s - 3 .’ 83 282
Ooputy Dract,
Corporate and Information Services Division ur - 3 ” 193
astant Dvacor,
Policy Coordination Branch 131 = 3 15 148
Total Rermaation o B 0 ) 7 12
1 July 2011 -0 June 2012
LongTem  post
Shon TermEnployes Becets  Employes  Employment Tominslon | Tolal
Benefits Benefits. .

Positon

ase Mommonstary

- enette so00 sam0 s s

oo

— 0 P . n s 2w
Ooputy Dictr
Curriculum Services Division 153 “ 4 7 - 218
Acing Deputy Do , i )
Assessment and Reporting Division " 4 7 196
Oeputy Dioct, ; .
Corporate and Informatin Servces Division 43 2 3 ” 205
Aestat irectr
Policy Coordination Branch 126 3 3 15 144
I —— 70 1 B ) E 100
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2013 2012

6 Supplies and Services 000 5000
Travel 539 1225
Gonsultans and service providers 3031 3703
Telecommunication and access fees % 136
Postage, freight and sorage 1332 1418
Catering 548 a5
Prining, sationery, books and publications 1610 1602
Property, equipment and mainienance 4009 077

Other £ %

Total — . —
7 Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation were incurred in respectof-

Plart and equipment 32 w9
Software ntemally generated 1126 1144
Total fo— ./ —
8 Impairment Losses
Intangible assets. 800 =
Total =
For datais of e recognised impairmntoss efer o Noto 13,
3 Other Expenses
Insurance premiums - QGIF 8 50
External audi fees ) 2
Internal audt foes™* ES 2
Bark and other charges 4 8
Bad debt expense - 2
Losses from disposa of pant & equipment 6
Total — . —

“Total audt fos paidt the Qusensiand Audit Ofca reatng tothe 2012-13 financi statements aro stimated o be $29,000 (2012: $29,400),
Thera are 1o non-audt sarvicas included i thi amount.

The Aoty engaged the sonices o Intormal Audt fom the Dopartmantof Education, Traiing & Employmont o perform financl complanca
audts

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Imprest accounts 5 1

Cashat bark and on hand. 3 3

Deposis at call 12472 10725
Total X

Iterost oarmed on cash hold with FinanciaInsttutons earned betweon 2.70% o 6.00% in 2013 (2012: 275% to 623%).

11 Recelvables

Trade debiors 269 )
GST receivable 5 15
GST payable o =
Iterest receivabie 37 125
Long service leave reimbursements 22 125

Total — i —
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2013 212

12 Inventories so00 000

Pubications 2
Total |

Inentoiss ave bean valuad st net relsabl valus inscsordance with AASE 102 Iventorss. The vaue o inventoryheld has baen increased by
525,752 (by 2 decreasa n expanse). The ncreass n valua s based on both an analys o the normal safig patiernof the Authorty's nvertory
ancithe prodictod impactof obsolescence o sylabus mataras. No nventory hold has boen piedged s securty fo abities.

13 Intangible Assets

Software intemally generated

At cost 12,80 12800

Less: Accumuated amortisation ®506) (7.380)

Less: Accumuiated mpairment osses -
540

Software under development (Workn progress) il 182
Total fo— o—.

Intangibes Reconciliation

il T — ot

P e — —

o ——von——vom o voos——suo0

i e o | sm| e sew| o
s mah wal s I . : - -
e e s . d I .
Pt : B O [
it b N 3 13—

*impaiiment losses are show a3 separae e tems n the Statement of Comprahensve Income.

‘Amortiston o nangisles s incuded in e e m ‘Depraciaion and Amortisatin' nthe Sttementof Comprhensive Income

Allintangile assets o the Autorty have fits usefulfves and s amotsed on a staight in basis, Refert Note 1),

o intangible ssets have besn csssfiad s heldfr sl or form part of  isposal group hld o sae.

The Authorty has a sftuare program wih a originalcostof 2,000,000 and 3 writen down valus of 26ro il being used n the provision of
Sorvcos. Thero ks no known datfo eplacing tis sofivare program.

The Assossment Bank softuars applicaion wos idaiied as bing mpaitd and subsequenty wrten-ff n Juna 2013. This was a5  reslt of the
cossation offning for assessment tom wters 3nd aiso dustothe conton of the Assossment Bark baing moved t tho Authorey's wsbste. An
Impaliment oss of 799,545 has boen recognised i the Siatemart of Comprehensive Income.
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14 Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment
Atcost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Less: Accumuated impairment losses

Work in Progress:
Atcost

Total

2013 212
000 000

3007 3105

(2465 222)
—wm m
s 5
— . o—

The Queersiand Studies Authorty has flly doprociated plant and equipment it a cos of 1,618,573 st eing used nthe proviian f servics.
Plant and squipmant s vlued at costn accordance wih Quesnsiand Treasury and Trade's Non-curront Assat Polciesfr the Quoensiand Public

Secor

Fladtnd sqEict Tecofemslon Plant& Equipment Work inProgress Total
B o7 FE| 7077 o7 7077
oo 000 oo 009 5 000
Opening Balance La 02 . B a3, rie
Acqisiions 21 107 “ : 5 107
DisposaiuAssets witanof - © - - - o
Oeprciston s o) - o) 9
Carrying amount at 30 June iz 1 3 > 3 1353
15 Payables 2013 212
000 5000
Trade crediors 357 322
Other 185 171
Total
16 Accrued Employee Benefits
Gurrent
Salares payable s 2
Anrualleave 1165 1961
Long senvce eave % 108
Total o b S—
The Authorty has implemantd & Recrsston Loave Managarment Polcy.The polc equres & formslRacrasto Leaya Mansgement Flan (RLWF)
1915 in plce fo sach aneloyea i a balnce grste ran 40 daye annual v, The RLMP nsurs the arployees batancs il b ncer 40
caye i v morthe, Accordingl, th Authory recognisas a annual lave s curtent
17 Reconcilation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash from Operating Actviies
Operating suplus 73 =25
Depreciaton & amortisaton expense 1478 1553
Impairment losses &0 -
Loss on salekisposa of non-current assets B 6
Change in assets and Hlabiltes:
(Increase)decrease n ade receivables [ 7
(ncrease)/decrease in GST input tax credits receivable (@40 1o
Decrease n LSL reimbursement eceivable 0 @n
(ncrease)idecrease n otner receivables s )
(Increase)idocrease i nventory @ £
(ncrease)decrease n prepaymerts 0z 7
Increasel(decrease) in accounts payable 25 ©
(Decrease) n accrued employee benefts 612) I
Increasel(dectease) in GST payatie 7 @
Icrease n oher payables 14 162

Increasel(decrease) in unearned revenue
Net cash provided by operating activites

I} 175
| —
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18 Commitments for Expenditure
{a) Non cancellable operating leases

Commitments under operating leases at reporting date are inclusive of antiipated GST and are payable as follows:

2013 212

$000 000

Notlter than one year 281 2732

Later than one year and ot later than fve years 3017 5718
Later than fve years

Total — . s—.

(Operating leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access 1o ofice accommodation and storage faciltes.
Lease payments are generally ixed, but with nflaton escalation clauses on which contingent rentals re determined.

No purchase options exist n relation o operating sases and o operating leases contain estrctions on financing or other leasing
acivies.

(b) Capltal Expenditure Commitments

Materal classes of capital expenditure commitments inclusive of anicpated GST, contracted for at reporting date but not
recognised in the accounts, are payable as follows:

2013 Intangibles
Payable S000
Notater than one year a2

Total —
2012 Intangibles
Payable $000
Notater than one year 3

Total f—

18 Contingencies

‘Guarantees and undertakings.

The Queensland Studies Authority was not commitied to any guarantees or undertakings at 30 June 2013 There are no other known
contingent assets o fabilties atthe date of this report
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20 Financial Instruments.
(@) Categorisation of Financia instruments

The Authorty has the following categories of financial assets and financial abiles:

2013 2012

Category Notes $1000 000
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0 12505 10738

Receivables 1 516 g8
Total K
Financial Liabilties

Payabies 15 742 3463
Total X

(b) Financial Risk Management

The Authorty's activiies expose it 0 a variety o financial risks - nterest rate risk, cret sk, iquidty risk and market rsk.

Financial risk management is mplemented pursuantfo Goverment and Queensland Stuies Authoriy polcy. These polices focus on
the unpredictabilty of financial markes and seek to minimise potental adverse effects on the financial performance of the Authorty.

Al financial sk s managed by the Chief Execuiive Offcer under polices approved by the Authority. The Authorty provides witen
principles for overallrisk management, as well as policies covering specifc areas.

Queensland Studes Authorty measures isk expostre using a variety of methods as follows -

Risk Exposure Measurement Method
Cred Risk Ageing analysi, earings at isk
Uiquidty Risk ‘Sensitty analysis

Market Risk Interest rate sensitvty analysis

(€) Credit Risk Exposure

(Credit risk exposure refers o the stuation where the Authory may incur financialloss as a resul of anather party to a financial
insirument faing o discharge their obligation.

The maximum exposure to credi risk at balance date n rlation o each ciass of recogrised fivancial asselsisthe gross carying
amount of hose asses incusive of any provisions for mpairmers.

No collateral s heid as security and no credit enhancemens elate to financil assels heid by the Authory.
The Authorty manages creditrisk through the use of a creit management stategy. Ths strategy aims to reduce the exposure 1o credit
default by ensuring that the Authorty invests in sscure assets and monitors all funds oved on a tmely basis, Exposure o creditisk s
monitored on a reguir basis

No financialassets and financial abiltes have been offset and presented net inthe Statement of Financial Positon.

The method for calcuiating any allowance forimpairment s based on past experience, curtent and expected changes in economic:
conditions and changes in client redilratings.

‘Aging of past due but not impaited s well as impaired financial assets are disclosed inthe folowing tables:
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20 Financial Instruments (continued)
(@) Credit Risk Exposure (continued)

2013 Financial Assets Past Due But Not Impaired

Cowe [ Overdue ]
ot Tessthan 30-60 -5 Wore than Total
Overdue. 300ays Days Days. 90 Days. Overdue
Financial Assets 000 $000 S000 So00 S000 s000
Receivables 221 15 34 - - 49
Total i1 T L) = : )
2012 Financial Assets Past Due But Not Impaired
Cowe ] [ Overdus 1
ot Tess fan 00 %0 Wore Fan “Toar
Overdue. 30Days Days Days. 90 Days Overdue.
Financial Assets $000 s000 S000 So00 5000 000
Receivables 7 7 - ] 2 17
Total — T T T

(@ Liguidity risk

Liquidty rsk refes to the stuation where the Authority may encounter ificuly in meeting obigations associated vith financial
Tabiltes that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel

The Authority i exposed to liuidty risk through s rading in the noma course of business.

The Authorty manages liuicty risk through the use of a quidty management strategy. This srategy aims to reduce the exposure o
liquidity isk by ensuring the Authorlty has sufficien funds avallable to meet employee and suppler obligations as they fall due. This fs
achieved by ensuring the minimum levels o cash are held within the various bank accounts so as to match the expected duration of

the various employee and suppler labities

The following tabe sets ovt theliguity sk of fiancial liabiies held by the Authority. I represents the contractual maturity of
financial labites, calcuiated based on undiscounted cash lows relatng to the lbilfes at reporting date.

2013 Payable in
<year 1Sy >syears Total
Notes 000 So00 So00 000
Financial Liabiiies
Payabies 5 3702 3782
Total
2012 Payable in
<year  tosyears  a5years Total
Notes %00 000 00 000
Financial Liabiiies
1 3483 - - 3463
453 = = EXLs]

(&) Market Risk

The Authorty does nottrade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to commodiy prce changes. The Authory s exposed
{onterest rate isk thiough it cash deposited in inerest bearing accounts. The Authoriy does not undertake any hedging n reation
to nterest sk and manages s rsk as per the liquidty isk management sirategy ariculated In the Authorty's nvestmen Policy.
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20 Financial Instruments (continued)

(0 Interest Rate Sensitvity Analysis

The follwing nterestrate sensitivty analysis is based on a report siier o that provided fo management, depictng the outcome on
et income if nterestrates would change by +- 1% from the year-end rates applicable to the Authorty' firancial assels and labilties
With ol other variabies held constant, the Authority would have  surplus and equiy increase/(decrease) of $125,000 (2012:$107,000)

This is mainly atributable o the Authoriy’s exposure to variabe ierest rates on s cash invested.

Financial Instruments Carrying 2013 Interest Rate Risk
Amount % v
Profit Equity Profit Equity
Cash 12,505 125) (125 125 125
Potential Impact (128] 28] 25 75
The Authority's sensilvty o nterest has increased in the current period due to a rise n cash holdings.
Financial Instruments Garrying 2012 Interest Rate Risk
Amount % %
Profit Equity Profit Equity
cash 10,738 (107 (ior) 107 107
Potential Impact

The Authority does not recogrise any financial assets or financial iabiiies t fai vaue.

The fir value of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value ofthe orginal ransaction, less any allowance

for mpairment.




image32.jpeg
Queensland Studies Authority
Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013

21 Remuneration of Board Members

212
000

The Authorty's Board is comprised o the ollowing members as at 30 June 2013:

Name
Nir Bob McHugh (Chair)
Ms Maria De Porie
N Alan Finch
Or Paul Gies **
N Daryl Harly
M Leesa Jeflcoat
M Margaret Leary
Professor Robert Lingard
N David Robertson **
N Alan Waldron
Professor Claire Wyatt Smith
Or Suzanne Innes *
Ms Elizabeth Kapsch *
Ms Patricia Neate
N David Rogers *
N Trevor Schenke *
Ms Deidre Stein*
M Gl Young *

“The following members resigned from the Authorty's Board

Name
N Steve Ryan (resigned January 2012) ***
Nirs Tsae Wong (resigned October 2012)

Total
‘Board remuneration includes fees of $39,238 and superannuation of $3,159 (2012: fees of $37,156 and superannuation of $2,984).
*Bosrd members amployed b the Depariment of Educaton, Traiing and Employmentar ot el t emuneraion rom the Authory
** Fees paid to Queensland Independent Education Union.

= Faes paid o ndependent Schools Quesrsiand.

**** Fees paid to Queensiand Teachers Union.
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Certificate Of The Queensland Studies Authorlty
‘These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant o section 62(1) of the Financial Accountabilty Act 2009
(the Act). relevant sections of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and other prescribed requirements. In
accordance with section 62(1)(b) of the Act we certfy hat in our opinion:
)  the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with in al materal respects; and
b)  the statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed accounting standards, of the
iransactions of the Quesnsiand Studies Authory forthe financial year ended 30 June 2013 and of the financial position of the.
Authorty at the end of that year.
Neil McDonald Leesa Jeffcoat

Acting Chief Executive Officer

P Y W
27,2, /3. TR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Queensland Studies Authority
Report on the Financial Report

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Queensland Studies Authority, which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and ofher
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Acting Chief Executive Officer and Acting
Chair

The Board's Responsibillty for the Financial Report

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Financial
Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009,
including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards. The Board's responsibilty also
includes such intemal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and s free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilty

My responsibiliy s to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The
audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensiand Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements znd that the
audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers interal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control, other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed
requirements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report including any mandatory financial
reporting requirements approved by the Treasurer for application in Queensland.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Independence
The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all

authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector
entities and can be removed only by Parliament.
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The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant

Opinion

In accordance with 5.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 -
(a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and
(b)  inmy opinion —

()  the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the
prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Queensland
Studies Authority for the financial year 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 and of the.
financial position as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concemed with the inherent
risks arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the
printed copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically
presented information

e
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JF Welsh FCPA
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Que

Queensland Audit Office
Brisbane
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